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Financial Results
Year ended 31st December
BEt+t-A=t-HLEE
Operating Performance REXBRRYE 2010 2009
HK$’000 (F#& ) —E-EF —ETNF
Revenue Wz 53,677 16,800
Profit for the year A@E pigl 74,461 664,581
Profit attributable to NEERAENL
owners of the Company gl - 74,461 586,449
Net cash generated from (used in) meEBmE (R BeFE 22,475 (16,493)
operating activities
Earnings per share — basic REN—ER 2.257 centsit 22.364 centsi L
Financial Position (HK$°000) PR (FBT)
Net cash? REFR 99,964 73,583
Net current assets REEESE 100,342 107,599
Shareholder’s equity hRER 3,939,462 3,787,188
Net assets per share FREEFE 108.56 centsiE 130.91 centsi& 1Ll
Capital expenditure e 2,139 35,654
Key Ratios and Date TEREREBE
Profit margin Al 138.7% 3,955.8%
Current ratio BN & 3.0xf& 1.3xf%
Return on Equity AR 7 [B 4R 1.9% 15.5%
W Cash and cash equivalents less interest-bearing bank loan.
§ Re KB EEFEBE R SRITER
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Five Years Financial Summary
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Results e’
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-%% “TENEF —TTNF —TTHF ZELRF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx AL TET TET FET
(As restated)
(E71)
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue g 53,677 16,800 65,940 709,331 489,325
Profit (loss) before tax BT ADE 7 (B1) 81,571 683,220 (792,924) 1,215,159 (25,298)
Income tax expenses PEHEHX (19) - (1,759) (4,586) (1,069)
Profit (loss) for the year BELEEK L
from continuing operations KEERF (BE) 81,552 683,220 (794,683) 1,210,573 (26,367)
Non-controlling interests FER R - (78,132) 241,763 (92,736) -
Profit (loss) for the year NEEBA
from continuing operations [EILHELEER
attributable to owners ZAEERT
of the Company (B#) 81,552 605,088 (552,920) 1,117,837 (26,367)
Discontinued Operation BRIEEEER
Loss for the year from ERIEREER
discontinued operation JAEEEAR (7,091) (18,639) (86,961) - -
Assets and liabilities B kAR
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,839,120 3,679,589 3,462,584 3,979,495 237,428
Current assets MEE E 151,191 427 291 659,567 826,715 346,375
Total assets BEBE 3,990,311 4,106,880 4,122,151 4,806,210 583,803
Current liabilities MEEE 50,849 319,692 788,596 359,042 163,138
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - - - 915,461 16,667
Total liabilities BfEgE 50,849 319,692 788,596 1,274,503 179,805
3,939,462 3,787,188 3,333,555 3,531,707 403,998
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| am pleased to present the annual report of Superb Summit International
Timber Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

2010 REVIEW
Timber Business

Although the global economy is still teetering, the Group’s timber business
achieved total revenue of HK$53.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2010, representing a twofold increase compared with last year. The
increase is mainly due to robust log requirements for rapidly expanding
construction in the PRC and increasing marketing effort of our sales team.
The profit attributable to owners of the Company on these continuing
operations is HK$81.6 million, representing a decrease of 86.5%
compared with last year. The decrease is mainly attributable to the
decrease in gain arising from changes in fair value of the Group’s biological
assets and the absence of the discount on the acquisition of additional
interest in Green & Good Group Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, in
the year under review.

Electronic Products Business

The Group completed the disposal of its electronic products business on
23 June 2010 for a consideration of HK$88 million. During the year under
review, these discontinued operations had made a loss of HK$7.1 million.
After the disposal of this loss recurring business, the management would
be able to free up more resources to develop the Group’s timber-related
business and improve its profitability.

PROSPECT

With stimulus measures implemented by major economies, there have
been indications that the worst financial crisis in decades may have
abated. However, its underlying impact still causes ripples in the global
markets, which result in different recovery pace in different economies. It
is expected that the PRC economy will continue its growth momentum in
2011 and provide the Group with a positive operating environment.

RANERMRAZIFEBRAEBERA
A (RE)) REME AR (i =E])
HE_Z—TF+-_A=1+—HILFE
ZEFHR o

ZEF-FAEE M
PR A B

BEEMEBDALE  BEREE—F
—ZF+-_A=+—HILFE £EZ
MAE 0 E 3R 4 42553,700,000/8
TT REFEINME - ZIENETERMH
R BREREAZR U ME RARZFEK
B DA B 35 6 B B AT 35 HE R WSS P
B RERBREEB 2 RRER AR
1% M) 781,600,000/ 7T + MEAF R
86.5% ° BT BERAR/REEFE
N KEZEMEEZ AV EZBAE
EzBaEB AR BETEEE AR
MEBARZzZEBERAR ZHEIIME

Ny
S o

I

EEERZE—ZTFAAZ+=HEX
TEESFERER  REA
88,000,000/ 7T - MEIEFERN » %5F
B4R | F A S 158715 B8 7,100,000/
L BHEZBEBEXERE  BEE
15 RE D B 2 IR R & B 2 MOKAEEE
EBUARIBAERFGEN -

Wil 5t

EEETELERRIEERSERZ
T TEA T RBRI R+ F KRB
BEzemels SRARZAXEBE -
i - BRRF B ARERIRTIZHH
R EFTRAKERZERSKRER -
TR BB RE — T — — FIRIFHIE
REEE - EMAKEGERAN 2 LER
3% o



Chairman’s Statement

ESV 2 SUE

The year 2011 sees the beginning of the PRC's 12th Five-year Plan Period
during which the PRC will further accelerate the transformation of the
mode of development and promote the strategic adjustment of the
economic structure.

In 2011, while continuing carrying out its existing businesses in a pragmatic
manner, the Group will focus on industrial innovation in two aspects as
follows:

I. Planning and establishing a modern and
integrated forestry enterprise.

The Group will leverage its extensive operation experience in forestry
industry of the PRC to fully carry out the construction of the Tianjin
Linbo Industrial Park project (KM 1E Z 2 &) to realize the business
philosophy of “the promotion of the development of modern forestry
production industry through modern forestry services industry and
the development of urban commercial real estate and livable cities
through the construction of modern and integrated forestry parks”
and to capture the opportunity to promote such model throughout
the country after the completion of an overall conceptual planning
and the execution of relevant governmental land use agreements in
the preliminary stage.

II. Identifying the opportunities of the timber
framed house market and wooden
components market of the PRC.

With the rapid urbanization in the PRC and the establishment of
the concept of preservation of forest resources through rational
usage of wood, the PRC's timber framed house market is stepping
into a historical period of explosive growth. Especially in view of the
massive earthquakes occurred in Wenchuan, the PRC and Japan,
new timber framed houses and wooden components will be the
new growth point of property market in the PRC in the future.
Leveraged by the self-supply of raw material and its modern trading
channels, the Group will establish strategic cooperation with
technology providers and major manufacturers in this field from all
over the world for the construction of Tianjin Linbo Industrial Park,
so as to identify opportunities in sales of timber framed houses,
technical services and the operation of timber framed house
industrial park.
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Going forward, as the Group has discontinued its loss-making business,
it will focus on developing its timber business by expanding its logging
capacity and broadening its timber sales and distribution channels. On
the other hand, the Group will continue to explore potential investment
opportunities in order to broaden the Group’s profit base.

APPRECIATION

| would like to express my gratitude to our management team and all
employees for their strong commitment and contribution towards the
execution of the Group’s strategies and operations. | would also like to
thank our shareholders, customers and business partners for their
invaluable and enduring support.

Lee Chi Kong
Chairman
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s continuing
operations comprised exploitation and management of timber resources
in the PRC and distribution, marketing and sales of a wide range of timber
products while the Group discontinued its business of manufacturing and
sales of electronic calculators, liquid crystal display units and other
electronic products.

The year under review began with various stimulus measures continuously
implemented by major economies. There had been indications that the
global economy was on the way of recovery and therefore the Group’s
turnover improved, compared to the previous year. As the Group
completed the disposal of its electronic products business on 23 June
2010, this business was classified as discontinued operations. The
Group’s continuing operations achieved a turnover of approximately
HK$53.7 million, an increase of approximately 219.6% compared with
HK$16.8 million of 2009; and the profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$81.6 million, a decrease
of approximately 86.5% compared with approximately HK$605.1 million
for 2009. For the discontinued operations, turnover decreased to
approximately HK$204.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2010
from HK$414.3 million for last year; and loss of approximately HK$7.1
million (2009: HK$18.7 million) was incurred for the year under review.

Timber Business

During the year under review, the Group’s timber business recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$53.7 million (2009: HK$16.8 million),
representing an increase of approximately 219.6% compared to the
previous year. The increase is mainly attributable to continuous log demand
for rapidly expanding construction in the PRC and increasing marketing
efforts of our sales team. A gross profit of approximately HK$9.2 million
was recorded during the year, in contrast to a gross loss of approximately
HK$2 million in last year. This is mainly due to change in product mix.
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company from timber
business was approximately HK$81.6 million (2009: HK$605.1 million).
The decrease is mainly due to net effect of: 1) the decrease of
approximately HK$334.2 million in gain arising from change in fair value
of the Group’s biological assets, 2) the absence of discount of
approximately HK$375 million on acquisition of additional interests in
Green & Good Group Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, 3) the increase
of net gain of approximately HK$83.0 million on disposals of subsidiaries,
and 4) the decrease in share-based payments of approximately HK$68.0
million.
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Timber Logging and Trading

During the year under review, timber logging and trading recorded turnover
of approximately HK$53.7 million, accounting for 100% of the Group’s
turnover of continuing operations (2009: HK$16.8 million). In November
2009, the Company completed the acquisition of 100% shareholding of
its subsidiary, Green & Good Group Limited. Marketing and selling activities
were resumed which gave rise to a noticeable increase in the timber
logging and trading compared with last year.

Electronic Timber Trading

During the year under review, electronic timber trading business did not
generate any turnover and profit (2009: Nil).

Electronic Products Business

The Company had disposed of all of the Group’s electronic products
business on 23 June 2010, this business was classified as discontinued
operations.

Electronic Calculators

During the year under review, the sales of electronic calculators were
approximately HK$110.1 million or approximately 42.7% of the Group’s
total turnover. (2009: sales of approximately HK$241.4 million or
approximately 56.0% of the Group’s total turnover).

Other Consumer Electronic Products

During the year under review, the sales of multifunctional water resistance
watches and household telephones were HK$16.7 million and HK$42.6
million respectively, contributing 6.5% and 16.5% of the Group’s total
turnover (2009: sales of multifunctional water resistance watches and
household telephones were approximately HK$38.4 million and HK$58.4
million respectively, contributing approximately 8.9% and 13.5% of the
Group’s total turnover). The decrease is mainly because only six-months
(as opposed to full year in 2009) results of this sector were accounted for
in the Group’s results for 2010.
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Liquid Crystal Display (“LCD")

During the year under review, the sales of LCD were approximately
HK$24.3 million or 9.4% of the Group’s total turnover (2009: sales of
approximately HK$45.8 million or 10.6% of the Group’s total turnover).
The decrease is mainly because only six-months (as opposed to full year
in 2009) results of this sector were accounted for in the Group’s results
for 2010.

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT

The turnover and gross profit of the timber business improved during the
year. Given that the Group during the second half of last year (i) consolidate
the 100% shareholding of Green & Good Group Limited which indirectly
owns about 3.5 million cubic meter of timber resources covering forest
land of about 316,000 Chinese mu in the PRC; (i) dispose of the loss-
making and loan-bearing operation of G&G Wood ({4% 2 5= /A &l 7 #1 2&
B BR A R); (i) discharge the counterguarantee arrangements given by
Leeka Wood Company Limited and (iv) settle the outstanding shortfall
from profit guarantee receivable from Superview International Limited,
the financial position and liquidity of the Group has been improved. In
view of the potential demand in timber products driven by the PRC
government investment in infrastructure, it is believed that there are ample
business opportunities to be discovered in the PRC.

The Company decided to dispose of the electronic products business by
way of public tender in January 2010 and entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in April 2010 to sell the electronic products business. On 23
June 2010, the disposal was completed and implied that the Group could
free up more resources to develop its timber-related business.
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On 20 December 2009, the Company entered into a legally binding
framework agreement, namely “The Cooperative Framework Agreement
on The Project for the Logistic Base of the National Bonded Trading
Processed Manufacturing Industry and the Construction of the PRC’s
International Forestry Products Trading, Exhibition and Convention Centre”
(RERBERBRBRZZINTHEREXEEPBEBERAEREER
SEREFB LA A EEREBH)), with two independent third parties in
relation to the initial proposed formation of a joint venture (the “Joint
Venture”) in the PRC to establish a forestry products trading, exhibition
and auxiliary services platform in Tianjin Binhai New Area, the PRC, so as
to expand the Company’s forestry products trading business.

On this basis, the Company entered into a legally binding framework
agreement, namely “The Cooperative Framework Agreement on The
Project for the Logistic Base of the National Forestry Industry and the
Construction of the PRC’s International Forestry Products Trading,
Exhibition and Convention Centre” (CB 5% 4k R 2 28 H 1 B2 B B9 B AR 22
mEERSERFLIEE A EIEZ R E)) with the two independent third
parties on 15 September 2010 in relation to the development and
construction of the PRC’s International Forestry Products Trading,
Exhibition and Convention Centre (7 BB R ME RIEERX 5 EH L)
in Tianjin Binhai New Area, the PRC.

In addition, on 3 December 2010, the Company entered into a framework
agreement, namely “The Strategic Cooperative Framework Agreement”,
with Tianjin Port (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Port Group”), and on 4 January
2011, the Company entered into a supplementary agreement thereto with
Tianjin Harbor-side Industrial Investment Holding Limited (X2 F i & %
A PERA R A 7)), a controlled corporation under Tianjin Port Group,
in relation to the in-principle cooperation in respect of development of
timber port, quarantine processing line and storage district for timber
logistics in the harbor-side industrial area of Tianjin Binhai New Area, the
PRC.
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Employees and Remuneration Package

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had approximately 70 employees
(2009: approximately 3,250 employees). The decrease in employees was
attributable to the disposal of the Group’s electronic products business
and G&G Wood, an indirect subsidiary of the Group. The remuneration
package was based on their work performance, experience and the
industry practice. The Group also participated in retirement benefits
schemes for its staff in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Capital Expenditures

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$2.1 million (2009:
HK$35.7 million) on acquisition of new production machineries, which
was financed by internal cash resources.

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2010 (2009: Nil).

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Finance Resources

During the year, the Group generally financed its continuing operations
with internally generated resources, and its discontinued operations with
internally generated resources and banking facilities provided by its
principal bankers in Hong Kong and the PRC. The banking facilities were
secured by corporate guarantees of the discontinued operations. As at
31 December 2010, the Group do not have interest-bearing borrowings
(31 December 2009: Nil). In addition, a loan facility of up to HK$50 million
granted by a licensed lender to the Company in October 2009 will expire
in April 2011. During the year, the Company did not make any drawing
under the facility.
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The Group’s sales and purchases were either denominated in Renminbi,
Hong Kong or US dollars. Accordingly, the Directors consider the Group
has no significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations in view of
the stability of the exchange rates of Renminbi, Hong Kong and US dollars.
During the year, the Group did not use any financial instrument for hedging
the foreign exchange risk or interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$151.2 million (2009: HK$427.3 million) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$50.8 million (2009: 319.7 million). The Group’s current
ratio had increased from approximately 1.3 times as at
31 December 2009 to approximately 3.0 times as at 31 December 2010.
The Group had total assets of approximately HK$3,990.3 million (2009:
HK$4,106.9 million) and total liabilities of approximately HK$50.8 million
(2009: HK$319.7 million), representing a gearing ratio (expressed as total
liabilities to total assets) of approximately 1.3% as at
31 December 2010 as compared with approximately 7.8% as at
31 December 2009.

PROSPECT

Although there are still ripples in the global markets, there have been
positive signs that the global economy is on the way to recovery with
stimulus measures implemented by major economies. It is expected that
the PRC economy will continue its growth momentum in 2011 and provide
the Group with a positive operating environment, especially with the
continuous strong demand of both private and public housing in the PRC.

The year 2011 sees the beginning of the PRC's 12th Five-year Plan Period
during which the PRC will further accelerate the transformation of the
mode of development and promote the strategic adjustment of the
economic structure.
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In 2011, while continuing carrying out its existing businesses in a pragmatic
manner, the Group will focus on industrial innovation in two aspects as
follows:

I. Planning and establishing a modern and
integrated forestry enterprise.

The Group will leverage its extensive operation experience in forestry
industry of the PRC to fully carry out the construction of the Tianjin
Linbo Industrial Park project (&M1& = % &) to realize the business
philosophy of “the promotion of the development of modern forestry
production industry through modern forestry services industry and
the development of urban commercial real estate and livable cities
through the construction of modern and integrated forestry parks”
and to capture the opportunity to promote such model throughout
the country after the completion of an overall conceptual planning
and the execution of relevant governmental land use agreements in
the preliminary stage.

II. Identifying the opportunities of the timber
framed house market and wooden
components market of the PRC.

With the rapid urbanization in the PRC and the establishment of the
concept of preservation of forest resources through rational usage
of wood, the PRC's timber framed house market is stepping into a
historical period of explosive growth. Especially in view of the
massive earthquakes occurred in Wenchuan, the PRC and Japan,
new timber framed houses and wooden components will be the
new growth point of property market in the PRC in the future.
Leveraged by the self-supply of raw material and its modern trading
channels, the Group will establish strategic cooperation with
technology providers and major manufacturers in this field from all
over the world for the construction of Tianjin Linbo Industrial Park,
so as to identify opportunities in sales of timber framed houses,
technical services and the operation of timber framed house
industrial park.

Going forward, as the Group has discontinued its loss-making business,
it will focus on developing its timber-related business by expanding its
logging capacity and broadening its timber sales and distribution channels.
On the other hand, the Group will continue to explore potential investment
opportunities in order to broaden the Group’s profit base.
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The directors are pleased to present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 (“the Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 21
to the consolidated financial statements. Most of the Group’s core
business remains unchanged except the non-core business of electronic
consumer product has been disposed of.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 38 to 124.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options
during the year, together with the reasons therefore, are set out in notes
30 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of movements in the Company’s convertible notes during the year
and subsequent thereto are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity
and note 32 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to HK$1,863,398,000 (2009: HK$2,020,425,000). This
includes the Company’s share premium account in the amount of
HK$1,494,669,000 (2009: HK$1,408,641,000) as at 31 December 2010,
which may be distributed, provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The Company'’s share premium account may also be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, our largest customer accounted for 15% (2009: 16%) of
turnover. The five largest customers comprised 32% (2009: 26%) of the
Group’s total sales.

For the years 2009 and 2010, purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for
both years.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors
Mr. Lee Chi Kong (Chairman)
Mr. Jing Bin

(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Cheng Man For
Mr. Law Wai Fai (resigned on 22 June 2010)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Cheung Wai Tak (appointed on 24 June 2010)

Mr. Li Xiangjun (appointed on 24 June 2010)

Mr. Chen Xiaoming (appointed on 26 November 2010)
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen (resigned on 24 June 2010)

Mr. Wong Yuen Kuen (resigned on 24 June 2010)

Mr. Zhu Guang Qian (resigned on 26 November 2010)

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Cheung
Wai Tak, Mr. Li Xiangjun, Mr. Chen Xiaoming and Mr. Cheng Man For will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 32 to 35 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’” SERVICE CONTRACTS

All executive directors have entered into service contracts with the
Company for a term of two years. These service contracts continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than four months’
notice in writing to the other party.

All independent non-executive directors have not been appointed for a
specific term but will hold office until the next following annual general
meeting and will then be eligible for re-election in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company. Save as disclosed above, no
director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the Year.

FIEEBAEERAT
T -TFFR

Ee Y TS YNCY L

RABEEREESREBAEZBEH
MRARFREI2EEI6H °

g 2 B K

PIERITEEE QARG AHAMERR
Bak  HESSES  BRIHEM—7
BHALROE BT =~ TIAK
Jto

BB FRITESHERERESF
B BLHBETERRAEFKES
1k WiSHBRBIEA R ERMAEE
BT o B EXFIIREESIN - BIRRNE
ERRBFAS LEREZES  HiER
RBIRILEMRBNER —F AR
{8 OXERERRIN T T AR Z RIEE
o

WA Z A R A

RAIREEMHERRRNFRELAFE
REASELET L AREERNETE
BEAMEBRAERER CEREN -



SUPERB SUMMIT INTERNATIONAL TIMBER COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Report of the Directors

%%@ B3

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares and share options of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

Long position

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

RZZE—ZEF+-A=1+—H RAE
ERFBITRABE AR REARLE
(REBEHELBEEA(TBERREK
Bl)) EXVEBE ) 2 B D K I RR i
BHATLARAIEER LB KEHIZE352
EMEE 2 ERMRIE LT ARESR
EITERR HMRETRIA QR RES
ARSI ER AR ([HBRAT]) T8
M EmMT

Liycs
(a) A EFRETE1EH0.10 0 %

i)
Number of Percentage of
issued ordinary the issued
Name of directors Capacity shares held share capital
BEEnE g6 e BRTERREA HEBTREABSL
Mr. Lee Chi Kong Held by controlled 32,912,000 0.91%
ZEMEE corporation (Note)
MR EHEBERA ()
Beneficial owner 165,000 0.01%
BExAA
Mr. Li Xiangjun Beneficial owner 1,820,000 0.05%
BV EnAA
34,897,000 0.97%
Note: 5T -

These ordinary shares are owned by Huge Healthy Investment Development
Limited (“Huge Healthy”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”). The entire issued share capital of Huge Healthy is beneficially
owned by Mr. Lee Chi Kong.
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(b) Share options (b) JERHE
Number of Percentage of
Number of underlying the issued
Name of directors Capacity options held shares share capital
EEnE g4 FEEREZE MHEROEHE HEBITREBEIL
Mr. Lee Chi Kong Beneficial owner 27,000,000 27,000,000 0.74%
FEMxE EnEBA
Mr. Jing Bin Beneficial owner 35,500,000 35,500,000 0.98%
SELE EalBA
Mr. Cheng Man For Beneficial owner 32,000,000 32,000,000 0.88%
BREE ExnEBA
Mr. Cheung Wai Tak Beneficial owner 3,000,000 3,000,000 0.08%
REEEE EnEBA
Mr. Li Xiangjun Beneficial owner 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.06%
THERAE BB A
99,500,000 99,500,000 2.74%
Save as disclosed above, none of the other directors, chief executives B ENFIIEEEN RZE—FF+=

and their associates, had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December
2010.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors and chief executive’s
interests or short positions in shares and share options” and “Share option
scheme” above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2010, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows
that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors
and chief executive, the following shareholders had notified the Company
of the relevant interests in the issued share capital of the Company.

FEBH
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Long positions A
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company 2w B ¢ T {6 0. 107 70 8 48 )k
Number of
underlying Percentage of
shares the issued
Number of (convertible share capital
issued ordinary notes or share of the
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held options) held Company
Fris R 5
FiEE 81T (TRBRES HARE#T
KRR ERB 14 EERHE B 8B BREZBDH
Wider Success Holdings Beneficial owner Nil 404,040,000 11.13%
Limited (Note 1) (Ff#E1) EREAA i
Mr. Tse On Kin (Note 2) Interest of controlled Nil 404,040,000 11.13%
WL EEE (2 corporation 4
XEHEE RS
Magic Stone Fund (China) Beneficial owner 720,000,000 397,656,000 30.80%
(Note 3) (Ht&£3) ExEAA
Superview International Beneficial owner 721,000,000 457,656,000 32.48%
Limited (Note 4) EREAA
BRERARLA (M)
Mr. Yiu Yat On (Note 5) Interest of controlled 721,000,000 457,656,000 32.48%

ki S (H5E5) corporation
R EE
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Note:

These ordinary shares are owned by Wider Success Holdings Limited (“Wider
Success”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).
The entire issued share capital of Wider Success is beneficially owned by
Mr. Tse On Kin.

Mr. Tse On Kin owns 100% of Wider Success Holdings Limited. Accordingly,
Mr. Tse On Kin was deemed to be interested in 404,040,000 underlying
shares held by Wider Success Holdings Limited.

Magic Stone Fund (China) is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
It is 99.99% owned by Superview International Limited.

Superview International Limited is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. It is 100% owned by Mr. Yiu Yat On. Superview International
Limited owns 99.99% of Magic Stone Fund (China). Accordingly, Superview
International Limited was deemed to be interested in 720,000,000 shares
and 397,656,000 underlying shares held by Magic Stone Fund (China).

Mr. Yiu Yat On owns 100% of Superview International Limited. Accordingly,
Mr. Yiu Yat On was deemed to be interested in 721,000,000 shares and
457,656,000 underlying shares held by Superview International Limited.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other interests or short position in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2010.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A
COMPETING BUSINESS

No director had interests in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group,
as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), during the Year
and up to the date of this report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicity available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there
is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required by the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of Listing Rule and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Company appointed Parker Randall CF (H.K.) CPA Limited as its
auditor since 2 December 2010 immediately following Lo and Kwong
C.P.A. Company Limited’s resignation as auditor of the Company on 2
December 2010.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2010 have been audited by Parker Randall CF (H.K.) CPA Limited who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
to this effect will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lee Chi Kong
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2011
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

LEE Chi Kong (Chairman)
JING Bin (Chief Executive Officer)
CHENG Man For

Independent Non-executive Directors

CHEUNG Wai Tak
LI Xiangjun
CHEN Xiaoming

MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

CHEUNG Wai Tak
LI Xiangjun
CHEN Xiaoming

MEMBERS OF REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

CHEUNG Wai Tak
LI Xiangjun
CHEN Xiaoming

MEMBERS OF NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

CHEUNG Wai Tak
LI Xiangjun
CHEN Xiaoming

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Units 3307-08, 33rd Floor

West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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The board of directors (“Board”) is committed to maintaining statutory
and regulatory standards and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance with emphasis on transparency, independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Board reviews its corporate governance practices
from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders
and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to
fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CGP Code”) issued by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in its
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) sets out two levels of corporate governance practices, namely,
mandatory code provisions that a listed company must comply with or
explain its non-compliance, and recommended best practices that listed
companies are encouraged to comply with but need not disclose in the
case of non-compliance. The Company is in compliance with the
mandatory code provisions of the CGP Code, save for the deviations
discussed below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. The directors, individually and collectively, must act in
good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The
Board comprises three Executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Board has appointed several Board Committees
to oversee different areas of the Company’s affairs. The composition of
the Board and the Board Committees are given below and their respective
responsibilities are discussed in this report. Details of Directors’ attendance
at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings held during the year under
review are set out in the following table.
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Full Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings

£ E A RE
£ Z88g Z88 Z88
EEHR i S S g3 g3

Executive Directors

WITES
LEE Chi Kong (Chairman) 16/19 N/A N/A N/A
ZER (FE) i@ A i A i@ A
JING Bin (CEQO) 16/19 N/A N/A N/A
=B (TTEAEE) NiE A i A i A
LAW Wai Fai 1 5/6 1/1 N/A N/A
g TiE A T iE A
CHENG Man For 2 12/19 2/2 N/A N/A
Bl R} 3 A A
Independent
Non-executive Directors
B IEHMITES
CHAN Chi Yuen 8 3/7 1/1 N/A N/A
PR iR T iE R T iEA
WONG Yun Kuen 8 4/7 1/1 N/A N/A
=R N iE A i A
ZHU Guang Qian 4 7/16 2/2 2/2 N/A
RIEH TiERA
CHEUNG Wai Tak © 6/11 1/1 3/3 11
RIZTE
LI Xiangjun 5 6/11 11 2/3 11
=
CHEN Xiaoming 6 2/2 N/A N/A N/A
NS i A TER T iE A
Notes: P 5T
1. Resigned on 22 June 2010. 1. RIZE-ZFAZT-HEF-
2. Attended as secretary of committee, except in Board meetings he played 2. JEBLZECEAZESWE  HR
the dual roles as Director and Company Secretary. EFCLARRECESRRAW
=,
3. Resigned on 24 June 2010. 3. R-ZE—ZFA-_F+WHEET-
4. Resigned on 26 November 2010. 4. RZZE—ZEF+—AZFT AFT-
5. Appointed on 24 June 2010. 5. RZZE—ZFA-THHESRT-
6.  Appointed on 26 November 2010. 6. MRZTE—ZF+—A=-+HEZ

e
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The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors have confirmed in writing their independence from
the Company in accordance with the guidelines on director independence
of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the Company considers all such
Directors to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this report are set out on pages 32 to 35 of this annual report. Given the
composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge and expertise of the
Director, the Board believes that it is appropriately structured to provide
sufficient checks and balances to protect the interests of the Group and
the shareholders. The Board will review its composition regularly to ensure
that it has the appropriate balance of expertise, skills and experience to
continue to effectively oversee the business of the Company.

The Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective duties
and responsibility with the Company, the Company’s performance and
current market situation. Details of emoluments of the Directors from the
Group for the year are disclosed in Note 12 to the financial statements.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The appointment of new Directors is recommended by the Nomination
Committee. The Board will then take into account criteria such as
expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when considering a new
appointment.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (“Articles”),
all Directors (except the Chairman, Deputy Chairman, Managing Director
or Joint Managing Director) are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meetings of the Company. New Directors
appointed by the Board during the year are required to retire and submit
themselves for re-election at the first annual general meeting immediately
following their appointments. Further, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors (excluding the Chairman, Deputy Chairman,
Managing Director or Joint Managing Director), or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third
are required to retire from office. Out of the six directors, five of them
(except the Chairman) are subject to retirement by rotation.
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The existing Articles governing the retirement of Directors deviate from
the CGP Code provisions in the following aspects: (i) unlike the other
Directors, the Chairman, Deputy Chairman, Managing Director or Joint
Managing Director is not subject to retirement by rotation; (i) new Directors
appointed to fill casual vacancies are subject to election by shareholders
at the first annual general meeting instead of the first general meeting
after their appointments; and (iii) the Directors who are subject to
retirement by rotation are not explicitly subject to retirement at least once
every three years. The Board will review the above-mentioned practice
from time to time and consider amending the Articles when necessary.

TERM OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has not complied with code provision A.4.1 that requires
non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. Currently, there are no service contracts entered
into between the Company and the three Independent Non-executive
Directors and they have no fixed term of office with the Company. In
accordance with the Articles, all Independent Non-executive Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation. Also, new Independent Non-
executive Directors appointed by the Board during the year are required
to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first annual general
meeting immediately following their appointments. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose
of this code provision.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all of the three Independent Non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. CHEUNG Wai Tak, who
possesses extensive accounting experience in financial and commercial
sectors. It is responsible for appointment of external auditors, review of
the Group’s financial information and oversight of the Group’s financial
reporting system and internal control procedures. The Committee is also
responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the Group prior
to recommending them to the Board for approval. It meets regularly to
review financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end has
unrestricted access to personnel, records and external auditors and senior
management.
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The Committee has specific written terms of reference which are of no
less exacting terms than those stipulated in code provision. In 2010, the
Audit Committee held two meetings. At the meetings, it reviewed the
final results for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2010 respectively. It also reviewed the
Company’s progress in implementing the corporate governance
requirements as set out in the CGP Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee, composed of all three Independent Non-
executive Directors, is responsible for reviewing and determining the
compensation and benefits of the Directors and senior management. The
committee members elect one of them to take the chair at the
commencement of each meeting. The Committee has specific written
terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than those
stipulated in code provision.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee, composed of all three Independent Non-
executive Directors, is responsible for reviewing and making
recommendation to the Board on matters relating to the Board structure
and appointment and re-appointment of Directors. The committee
members elect one of them to take the chair at the commencement of
each meeting. The Committee has specific written terms of reference
which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in code provision.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period with a view to ensuring such financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow for that period. The Company’s financial
statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are
responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system of the Group. The Group’s system of internal control
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority, safeguard
its assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to
oversee the Group’s operational systems for the achievement of the
Group’s business objectives.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Board had conducted a
review on the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls in
areas of financial and operational functions, risk management and
regulatory compliance. In addition, an internal control review carried out
by Zhonglei Risk Advisory Services Limited, an external consultant, was
completed during the year ended 31 December 2010. Within this exercise,
key risks and the controls required to mitigate these risks have been
indentified. The Board is able to notice that the internal controls are
working as designed or that necessary corrections are required where
control weaknesses have been found. Based on the above, the Board
considered that the Group has effective internal control system.
Nevertheless, the Board continues to improve the internal control system
through periodic review and recommendation from external auditors
identified from their process of audit.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration to the external auditors in relation to their audit services
provided to the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2010
amounted to HK$1,006,000 (2009: HK$1,100,000). There was no non-
audit service incurred for the financial year ended 31 December 2010
(2009: HK$ Nil). The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 36 to 37.

P 8

EEesEARAREERE2NEHZ
NEEEIE RS - BRIERATERERLE
B R - REEEUTREEE L
ERAEE  BTEEE 2 G285 A
R ATIR AT 55 2 T B E Rt B
%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ\?’éﬁﬁ( R TE & HE A D H
FA o EERRE A EMRET
ﬁ%éﬁ?&ﬁﬁﬂihﬂ% WEEEEE 2
EERABMUNENEE CEBEEZ -

BE-_Z-TFE+_A=1T—BL#F
E % Q%T’ilﬁ’\ﬁﬁ&&%@%&
B EREELEEARFIMCER
W*BWT AT TARES © Lo *BE&
2 ENEBEE T ERERER AR A
EITIRE ’EZIE\I{/EE,E/\‘\%ZJ:fE_%
FTZA=+—RLEFEATK ° FEiit
B - WM HRE B R R K%
FRBME CEEREE EF2TED
MEBEIR I BB REMEA - A FTHIR
ZERSEEL T L EZAME - BER
It EEERAEEZAEZERRE
o A - EFEABEBTE BRI
IERZBEN N AZ BB T BRI b 2 i
BENENDEZRR -

A B v 1

HEZZZF+-A=1+—HIHK
FE - %IEMI\HJZ%IEWMJZ%(HW%
i Sz 1~ 2 Bl % 41,008,000/ 7T (— 2=
S 1,100,000 7T) c HE_Z—F
F+_A=1+—HIMHRFETEES
IZERH (—ETNE T - %
HEB BT BERR s EEHNECESE
FITE B ZHAMRES] 6 -



Corporate Governance Report

ﬁ%%?‘n‘ﬁ%

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & —T—ZTF+ - A =+—HItFE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiry to all
Directors regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code during the
year and they all confirmed that they have fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code. The Company is considering adopting
a code of conduct governing securities transactions with terms no less
exacting than that required by the Listing Rules by employees who may
possess or have access to price sensitive information.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective
communications with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to
enhance such communications, the Company provides information
relating to the Company and its business in its interim and annual reports.
The Company regards its Annual General Meeting as an opportunity for
direct communications between the Board and its shareholders. All
Directors, senior management and external auditors make an effort to
attend the Annual General Meeting to address shareholders’ queries. The
Company also responds to requests for information and queries from the
shareholders and investors and welcomes the views of shareholders on
matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board
or management direct.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Director

Mr. LEE Chi Kong, aged 62, is the chairman of the Company and an
executive director. Mr. Lee has over 25 years of experience in sales,
marketing and management of U.S. high technology companies operating
in Greater China and Asia. He was the founder and managing director of
the Greater China Headquarters of Apollo Computer Inc and Silicon
Graphics Inc, both were U.S. listed companies, instrumental in upgrading
the design and manufacturing knowhow of various industries in China,
including that of electronics, machinery, power and energy, construction
and light industry. Mr. Lee has devoted 10 years in advising Chinese and
global corporations in creative marketing, business development and
strategic alliance. He was the president of Hong Kong Toastmasters Club,
founder and president of New Experience Toastmasters Club, a
communications and leadership programme to train young people, and
co-founder of China Windmill Foundation, a charity programme to provide
clean water to poor farming villages and the temporary shelters at the
Sichuan Earthquake Zone.

Mr. JING Bin, aged 42, is an executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Jing has over 10 years of experience in finance,
investment and corporate management. He has worked in large-scale
corporations such as Bank of China before, and has extensive experience
in strategic development, business development, reform management.
Mr. Jing was invited to become a member of the topic “Assessment and
Transaction of Forest Resources and Assets” (FRME R & E T4 EHZ 5)
in State Forestry Administration. With his practices and experience in
corporations, his opinion was valuable and directional to setting up a
systematic and scientific assessment system for forest resources in Asia,
an efficient forest assets transaction market and for the modern forestry
corporation.
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Mr. CHENG Man For, aged 46, is an executive Director and company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Cheng is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He has obtained
a Master of Business Administration from Macquarie University of Sydney,
Australia. Mr. Cheng has worked as chief financial officer, company secretary
and financial controller of companies whose shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with extensive experience in finance,
investment, corporate management and company secretarial practice.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEUNG Wai Tak, aged 58, has more than twenty years of working
experience in the investment banking and accounting field. He is a Certified
Public Accountant in the United States of America and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He graduated with
an MBA degree from the University of California at Berkeley, the United
States of America in 1981. He was an executive director of China Grand
Forestry Green Resources Group Limited during the period from October
2007 to September 2009, and was an independent non-executive director
of Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited during the period from April 2007 to
November 2007, whose shares are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Currently, he is the independent non-
executive director of China E- Learning Group Limited, whose shares are
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Mr. LI Xiangjun, aged 39, received a bachelor degree in law in 1996. In
2003, he obtained the certificate of graduation from the master degree
program for international economic law of the University of International
Business and Economics. Mr. Li has been engaged in the legal services
industry since 1999. He is currently a practicing lawyer in the PRC and a
member of the Beijing Lawyers’ Association. He used to be the Corporate
Law Consultant or Legal Consultant for Special Affairs for large state-
owned enterprises, including China FAW Group, Lenovo Group and China
Life Insurance Group, and large foreign enterprises, including Asia Link
Group Inc., Zhenglin Food Co., Ltd. and Dongguan Hsu Chi Foods Co.
Ltd.. From 14 June 2007 to 15 August 2008, Mr. Li was an executive
director of Good Fellow Resources Holdings Limited, whose shares are
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
From 22 September 2008 to 11 June 2009, Mr. Li was an executive
director of China E-learning Group Limited, whose shares are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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Mr. CHEN Xiaoming, age 48, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 26 November 2010. Mr. Chen has
over eighteen years’ working experience in business planning and
development. He holds a doctor of philosophy degree in The University
of Sheffield of United Kingdom and a bachelor of science degree in Wuhan
University of People’s Republic of China.

Senior Management

Mr. William YUEN, aged 43, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
Mr. Yuen joined the Company in December 2010. Mr. Yuen previously
served as the Chief Financial Officer of a company listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Prior to that, Mr. Yuen had served as a
senior manager in the capital markets group and the assurance and
advisory services practice of two of the largest international accounting
firms in Hong Kong and in the United States of America (the "USA"). He
has extensive experience in corporate finance, accounting, auditing and
management. Mr. Yuen graduated from the University of Southern
California in the USA with a bachelor of science degree in accounting.
He is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a
certified public accountant in the State of California, the USA.

Mr. CAO Gang, aged 53, obtained a bachelor degree from Beijing College
of Posts and Telecommunications. He is the president of &y & &7 7T 1> 2
EBFEACORI) BER LA and ERFEZ TELEMBEER AT,
responsible for the overall management and operation of the Timber
Exchange transactions, warehouse monitoring business and timber
trading. Mr. Cao has extensive experience and has built a strong social
network in fields such as information technology, E-commerce, marketing
and international trade. He was the Deputy President of /& £ ((£[@)
A E and BEL MK AR A F], amember of the Ninth and Tenth
Committee of Beijing of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and the Sixth Haidian District Committee of Beijing of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and a standing director
of China Computer Industry Association.
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Mr. HE Yuan, aged 40, obtained a bachelor degree from Renmin
University of China and Northern Jiaotong University. He is currently the
Vice President of Jb R a1 I Jt 5 BB B R A 7], mainly responsible
for the management of transaction business, system construction and
operation, and technology research and development of the Timber
Exchange. Mr. He has extensive experience and social networks in fields
such as system integration, network operation and bulk trading of
commodities. He was a senior management member of China Aerospace
Corporation, F Bl KR EK B RETER A R], BHE & LMK (F E)
BRAR and I RBEMEHEZERAR A A

Mr. XIA Gang, aged 43, obtained a bachelor degree. He is a certified
public accountant and a certified public valuer of the PRC, and currently
the CFO of It R & 1§52 7015 BB AR A A and Leeka Wood Co., Ltd,
mainly responsible for the financial and accounting management of the
Timber Exchange and Leeka Wood Co., Ltd. Mr. Xia holds titles of senior
accountant and economist and has extensive experience in financial
management, financial accounting and tax processing. He held various
positions related to accounting, auditing and valuation in organizations
and companies such as State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council and 7 #181 & &+l £ 75
FTER A

Mr. SHI Zhi Rui, aged 62. He is currently the President of Leeka Wood
Co., Ltd, mainly responsible for the overall management and operation
of the timber resources and timber production and sales business of G&G
Wood. He has been engaging in corporate management over time. He
has extensive experience in the exploitation, management and operation
of timber resources. Mr. Shi was a senior management member of /& %

FAAEBAR and RAEREEZABR QA

Mr. YIN Rui Yu, aged 39, obtained a bachelor degree from Beijing
University of Civil Engineering and Architecture and Capital University of
Economics and Business. He is currently the President of Leeka Wood
Co., Ltd., mainly responsible for the timber management, logging,
processing, marketing and technology development. Mr. Yin has solid
theoretical foundations and extensive practical experience in timber
operation and trading, product marketing and planning, and information
communication. He was a senior management member of R FAZ % &

B, BEMEBEAEMKEER and REBEMKERBR QA
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To the shareholders of
Superb Summit International Timber Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Superb Summit
International Timber Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to 124, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Parker Randall CF (H.K.) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Seto Man Fai

Practising Certificate No.: P05229

Hong Kong

25 March 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E — T —TF + - A=+—HItFE

2010 2009
—ZE-ZfF —ETNF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FBT FHET
Continuing operations BHEREEL
Revenue W as 7 53,677 16,800
Cost of sales iR N (44,502) (18,836)
Gross profit/(loss) EXN (E8) 9,175 (2,036)
Other income H AU A 8 778 11,567
Other gains and losses H b Uz g5 18 9 152,031 865,344
Selling and distribution expenses HE Ry (3,446) (5,7083)
Administrative expenses TR (61,607) (45,150)
Other expenses HaFX (14,168) (126,539)
Finance costs BATE BN 10 (1,192) (14,263)
Profit before tax B % A % A 11 81,571 683,220
Income tax expense Frig®ifx< 14 (19) —
Profit for the year from BEREXBEMEEZ
continuing operations KEERF 81,552 683,220
Discontinued operations ERILEEE
Loss for the year from discontinued BRI EERES
operations ZARFEEE 15 (7,091) (18,639)
Profit for the year N F B A 74,461 664,581
Attributable to: BT AR
Owners of the Company NGIEZEDN
— Continuing operations — BEREER 81,552 605,088
— Discontinued operations — BERIEEE (7,091) (18,639)
74,461 586,449
Non-controlling interests FE 122 il 4
— Continuing operations — BEREER - 78,132
— Discontinued operations — BRIEEE - —
— 78,132
74,461 664,581




Consolidated Income Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E — T —TF + - A=+—HItFE

HIEFBRAEERQTF

T -TFFR

2010 2009
—E—FF —ETNEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FERT FHET
Earnings per share from REAFEREKL
continuing and discontinued REEBRANREBA
operations attributable EaEREF
to owners of the Company
for the year 17
Basic EHAR 2.257 centsi&fll  22.364 centsi 1l
Diluted BE 1.682 centsE{l 21.163 centsi#
Earnings per share from RERSERKEER
continuing operations attributable 2 T #AS AE(L
to owners of the Company BRER
for the year 17
Basic BN 2.472 centsi#fll  23.075 centsi# 1l
Diluted e 1.840 centsE{l  21.835 centsi
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E — T —TF + - A=+—HItFE

2010 2009
—E—FF —EFNF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FERT FHET
Profit for the year REEER 74,461 664,581
Other comprehensive income Htt2EKA
Reclassification adjustments for BERE W Em KT
gains on disposal of HEMB AR Z W
subsidiaries included in the YEM 2 E 3
consolidated income statement oI 35 (82,268) —
Exchange differences MEBINETE 2
on translation of foreign operations I N ZRE 146,936 10,193
Other comprehensive income FARAHMEEEA
for the year (net of income tax) (MBRATBH) 64,668 10,193
Total comprehensive income FREEBRALEE
for the year 139,129 674,774
Attributable to: BT ALHER:
Owners of the Company UNGIEZ SN 139,129 596,642
Non-controlling interests FE 12 il 4 2 - 78,132
139,129 674,774
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

TRt R N E S

As at 31 December 2010 R =T —ZTF+-H=+—H

T -TFFR

2010 2009
—E-=F —EENF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FBT FAT
Assets BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Prepaid land lease payments AN T ER 18 59,790 85,437
Property, plant and equipment Y - B NEE 19 2,273 2,542
Biological assets LB E 20 3,777,057 3,591,610
Total non-current assets FRBDEERE 3,839,120 3,679,589
Current assets RBEE
Prepaid land lease payments FEN A ER 18 1,521 2,075
Trade receivables eI E 5 BRIA 23 239 —
Prepayments, deposits TR I8 ETEE
and other receivables K2 E At e WK T 24 49,467 148,893
Cash and cash equivalents BehReH TEIE B 25 99,964 73,583
151,191 224,551
Assets of a disposal group classified SERBELE
as held for sale ZHEMRARIEE 15 - 202,740
Total current assets FBEEHAE 151,191 427,291
Total assets EEHE 3,990,311 4,106,880
Liabilities =K
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables BB SRE 26 215 207
Other payables and accruals H fib < FR18 K E AT RUE 27 49,286 202,019
Convertible notes interest payable FERT AR BT S 29 1,345 153
Income tax payables FERPTISEL 3 2,573
50,849 204,952
Liabilities directly associated with the HEAOBARIELE
assets of a disposal group classified ZNEERIEEERE
as held for sale HEzBE 15 - 114,740
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 50,849 319,692
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As at 31 December 2010 R =T —ZTF+-H=+—H

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EENF

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

B FE FExT FET

Total liabilities BEHAH 50,849 319,692

Net current assets RBEETRE 100,342 107,599

Net assets EEFE 3,939,462 3,787,188
Capital and reserves BARGFE

Share capital N 30 362,886 289,290

Reserves 1 3,576,576 3,497,898

Total equity ERBEE 3,939,462 3,787,188

The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 124 were approved HNEIBHEF 1248 2 i3 A EH*
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2011 and RZE——F=-A-_ThHHEEEEZ

are signed on it behalf by: EREETE  WATIHIATRESE
2
Lee Chi Kong Jing Bin
ZE[ =&
Director and Chairman Director and Chief Executive Officer

EFRTE EFRITHAAL



Statement of Financial Position
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As at 31 December 2010 R =T —ZTF+-H=+—H

HIEFBRAEERQTF

—E-TFFR

2010 2009
—E-%F —ETNF
NO‘te HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FHET FAT
Assets BE
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR 2 &E 21 1,455,350 1,536,508
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE LB B8 2 B 3R IR 21 663,513 664,692
Prepayments, deposits ENRIE - F]S
and other receivables K B A pE R IE 15,683 100,230
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReFEEE 93,283 23,720
Total current assets RBEEHLE 772,479 788,642
Total assets EEHE 2,227,829 2,325,150
Liabilities =K
Current liabilities nBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTPH BB 2 B] 3R 21 - 14,692
Other payables and accruals H b &~ 5108 & JE & RUE 200 590
Convertible notes interest payable JERT AT R IR F) 8 1,345 153
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 1,545 15,435
Net current assets RBEEFE 770,934 773,207
Net assets EEFE 2,226,284 2,309,715
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital AR 30 362,886 289,290
Reserves G 32 1,863,398 2,020,425
Total equity RSB 2,226,284 2,309,715
Lee Chi Kong Jing Bin

&

Director and Chairman

EFRTE

RE

Director and Chief Executive Officer

EFRTHARL
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 @ —T—ZTF+ - A =+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

PEELIN-3
Foreign
Property  currency Share  Convertible Statutory Non-
Share Share revaluation translation options notes equity General reserve  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve fund profits Total interests equity
k# ng TRREE EERE
i HE  EMEE  EARGE BRERS EEEE  -BEE B¢ REER it FEGEE  BEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
Tin TFEn TR Tt Tt THL ThL Tin Tin Tin Tin TEn
(Note 30) (Note a) (Note b)
(B3t30) (Mite) (B3tn)
At 1 January 2009 RZEFNE-A-H 234523 1,131,894 1,354 259,043 134,032 11,018 904 4917 758896 2,536,581 796,974 3,333,555
Profit for the year TEFET - - - - - - - - 586449 586449 78,132 664,581
Other comprehensive income for the year A% EEM2EUNA - - - 10,193 - - - - - 10,193 - 10,193
Total comprehensive income for the year  AEE2EUALE - - - 10,198 - - - - 586449 506,642 78132 674774
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Lﬂ%iﬂ Méé - - - - - - - - - - (875,106)  (875,106)
Disposal of a subsidlary HE-R - - - - - - (904) - - 904) - (904)
Issue of convertible notes i@’ﬁ}ﬁ 3 - - - - - 334,151 - - - 334,151 - 334,151
Cancellation of share options S - - - - (04,742) - - - 24,742 - - -
Employee share option benefits EEEREET - - - - 81,72 - - - - 81,172 - 81,172
Issue of shares for conversion of REamaRZE
convertible notes mETRH 6,667 53,333 - - - (6,010) - - - 53,990 - 53,990
Issue placing shares BIRERR 48,100 148,330 - - - - - - - 196,430 - 196,430
Share issue expenses BIRART - (5,866) - - - - - - - (5,866) - (5,866)
Redemption of convertible notes BET % - - - - - (5,008) - - - (5,008) - (5,008)
Transfer from retained profits EREETE - - - - - - - 171 (171) - - -
At 31 December 2009 and RZZSAFT-A=1-R
at 1 January 2010 Ri=F-55-f-A 289,290 1,327,691 1,354 269,236 190,462 334,151 - 5088 1,369,916 3,787,188 - 3,787,188
Profit for the year FEFET = = = - - - - - 74,461 74,461 - 74,461
Other comprehensive income KEEEMZERA
for the year - - - 64,668 - - - - - 64,668 - 64,668
Total comprehensive income TEEREHNEE
for the year - - - 64,668 - - - - 4,461 139,129 - 139,129
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAE - ) (1,354) - - - - (5,088) 6,442 ) - )
Cancellation of share options HhERE - - - - (81,474) - - - 81,474 - - -
Employee share option benefits EERRERN - - - - 13,154 - - - - 13,154 - 13,154
Issue of shares for conversion REdmahzE
of convertiole notes mETRH 73,506 86,028 - - - (159,624) - - - - - -
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZEF-A=+-H 362886  1,418710° - 333,904' 122,142 174,521 = - 1532,293° 3,939,462 - 3,939,462
* These accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$3,576,576,000 * ZE @ HBEEESMBARNREAT
(2009: HK3,497,898,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 24 A Wz3,576,576,000/8 T (—F
£ /1.473,497,898,000/ 7T.) °
Notes: Bt 5E
(@)  The share premium of the Group includes the premium arising from the (@ &KEzZERODBERSENTEITHR
new issue of shares of the Company. EEZHRE -
(o)  The subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of their profit after tax calculated ) MEBRAREBEREFREARLMA

in accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) accounting
regulations to the statutory reserve fund until such reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital of the respective subsidiaries, upon which any further
appropriation will be at the recommendation of the directors of the
subsidiaries. Such reserve may be used to reduce any losses incurred by
the subsidiaries or be capitalised as paid-up capital of the subsidiaries.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #E — T —TF + - A=+—HItFE

T-REFR

2010 2009
—Z-EfF ZEENF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B & FHExT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities K& FZHREHKE
Profit/(loss) before tax: BB AR (E18)
From continuing operations REBEBEKEER 81,571 683,220
From discontinued operations REBKRIEEEET (6,458) (16,595)
75,113 666,625
Adjustments for: SRR
Finance costs BE TS PR 1,192 14,263
Interest income F B WA (797) (10,327)
Depreciation e 1,608 19,106
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE - b 78 & B 8
payments 2,963 2,207
Changes in fair value less EMEERNTFEZER
costs to sell of biological $HE AR
assets (83,498) (417,702)
Discount on acquisition of W el FE 128 AR AR 5 2 T R
non-controlling interests - (875,022)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEMBAR W @ JF8E (67,883) (206,113)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BER&E
plant and equipment el 1= VAL &) 537 (42)
Impairment loss on property, plant LN
and equipment written back 2 BEEERD - (62,121)
Impairment loss on trade receivables JEWE 5 RIE 2 R EEE - 12,571
Impairment loss on other receivables Eoh FE WRIE 2 R B S 18 - 2,374
Write-down of inventories written back {8 77 & # [2l - (12,722)
Impairment loss for initial MEMRFFIELE 2
write-down of the disposal group HEMER 2 REEE
held for sale 15 - 222,571
Employee share option benefits & B R EE T 13,154 81,172
(57,611) (53,160)
Decrease in inventories FERD - 27,899
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables fEURE 5 8R18 (38 h0) /8 2 (239) 4,099
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERIE - A& REMmER
deposits and other receivables RIER A, (3 h0) 71,636 (104,899)
Decrease in biological assets Y EE R D 34,430 2,067
Decrease in trade payables BB SERER A 8 8,981
(Increase)/decrease in other payables H b e3R8
and accruals R FERTFRIE (&) m A (26,530) 90,246




SUPERB SUMMIT INTERNATIONAL TIMBER COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A Bl R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &% —

—EEF+ A=t —HLEFE

2010 2009
—E-=EF —EENF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAT
Cash generated from/(used in) rESEE TS (FTA)
operating activities Re 21,694 (24,767)
Interest received SR ENPSN 797 10,327
Overseas taxes paid BAEINRIE (16) (2,053)
Net cash from/(used in) operating BESEE TS, (FTA)
activities R&3H 22,475 (16,493)
Cash flows from investing activities REZHREHRE 36
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE - BE
plant and equipment PG IS 325 1,910
Acquisition of property, plant s -~ BB RE&E
and equipment (2,139) (35,654)
Disposal of subsidiaries HE KB A A (50,238) (7,498)
Net cash used in investing activities REZEFTAREEE (52,052) (41,242)
Cash flows from financing activities BEZHRERE
Redemption of convertible notes = - (50,000)
Proceeds from issue of placing shares 17 B & %5 P15 30IE - 196,430
Share issue expenses BITRMHAX - (5,866)
Interest paid AT HLE - (14,263)
Net cash from financing activities METBHESESTFE - 126,301
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BeRBESEEER
and cash equivalents Z (R) /e (29,577) 68,566
Cash and cash equivalents ENzRERBESEHEER
at the beginning of year 122,951 54,582
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXR&EH) 2 & 6,590 (197)
Cash and cash equivalents ERCZBAERBEESEEHIER
at the end of year 25 99,964 122,951




GENERAL

Superb Summit International Timber Company Limited (the
“Company”) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of
the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and revised
HKFRSs (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are relevant to its operations
and effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010.
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2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these consolidated financial statements unless
otherwise stated below:

Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations
(as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009)

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that the disclosure requirements
in HKFRSs other than HKFRS 5 do not apply to non-current assets
(or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations unless those HKFRSs require (i) specific disclosures in
respect of non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held
for sale or discontinued operations, or (ii) disclosures about
measurement of assets and liabilities within a disposal group that
are not within the scope of the measurement requirement of HKFRS
5 and the disclosures are not already provided in the consolidated
financial statements.

Disclosures in these consolidated financial statements have been
modified to reflect the above clarification.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 17 Leases

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009, HKAS 17 has
been amended in relation to the classification of leasehold land.
Before the amendments to HKAS 17, the Group was required to
classify leasehold land as operating leases and to present leasehold
land as prepaid land lease payments in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The amendments to HKAS 17 have removed
such a requirement. The amendments required that the classification
of leasehold land should be based on the general principles set out
in HKAS 17, that is, whether or not substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset have been
transferred to the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in the
amendments to HKAS 17, the Group reassessed the classification
of unexpired leasehold land as at 1 January 2010 based on
information that existed at the inception of the leases. The
classification of leases in the PRC remained as operating leases.

2
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3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HKFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective in these consolidated
financial statements.

L AU 18 28 B 2
7 A 5 9 0
SEERNGEEVBmKRERTY

ERME M RER 2 AT REE
RIEBEMBREER -

=

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on
or after
R T 5 E#E
PR h =d
FEHRE
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemption from Comparative 1 July 2010
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
ERMBREERNFE 15 BET) HERRNERE B FEHREGERET S —E-ZFF+HA—H
BELEEHZBERAE
HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of 1 July 2011
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
ERBMBREEBNE1H BET) BREBE IR KGR B XKW &2 ELE A& —T——F+tHA—H
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Transfers of Financial Assets 1 July 2011
ERMBREERNETHR BET) EREEEE —T——F+tHA—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2013
BB EERIFE R 2@ A —E-=%—H—H
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets 1 January 2012
ER g ERE125% (BR]) AEAETLIE - Yol rE B & —E—=—ZF—A—H
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011
BEBEGTERFE 245 (KIBET) BEANTREFR —ET——%—HA—H
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues 1 February 2010
BB G LR E325% (BE]) HERZ R —E-FTF_A—H

HK(IFRIC) Int-14 (Amendments)
% (PR BREZREZES)
—REBE1458 (1BF])
HK(IFRIC) Int-19

&8 (BRVBERERELZES)
—REE195
HKFRS (Amendments)

BB BREER (EFD)

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
RIBEFR R EZFBNAE

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments
URATABETHEE

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
— amendments to HKFRS 3 and 7
— amendments to other HKFRSs
ZE - ZEEZEH KRS ER Mk
— BB TSR LR FEI R ET 92 K
— B it BRI R PRl 2 2

1 January 2011

—ET——%—H—H
1 July 2010
—F-ZTFtA—H
1 July 2010

1 January 2011
—F-25+A—H
—=——%—HF—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is to be expected in the
period of initial application. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

£ R S 75T RGBT E
B 5 25 R B SR 5 1 AR B
B2 B BT < AT - R
BENERARHENTEZ S
2 3 A R AT o



FIEEBAEERAT @
T -TFFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 3 Y 5 e B ek

4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FEEHBOR

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for biological assets which are
measured at fair values less costs to sell, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

Basis of consolidation from 1 January 2010

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and
losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are
eliminated on consolidation in full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling
interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation from 1 January 2010 (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (jii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate.

Basis of consolidation prior to 1 January 2010

Certain of the above-mentioned requirements have been applied
on a prospective basis. The following differences, however, are
carried forward in certain instances from the previous basis of
consolidation:

o Acquisitions of non-controlling interests (formerly known as
minority interests), prior to 1 January 2010, were accounted
for using the parent entity extension method, whereby the
differences between the consideration and the book value of
the share of the net assets acquired were recognised in
goodwill.

° Losses incurred by the Group were attributed to the non-
controlling interest until the balance was reduced to nil. Any
further excess losses were attributable to the parent, unless
the non-controlling interest had a binding obligation to cover
these. Losses prior to 1 January 2010 were not reallocated
between non-controlling interest and the parent shareholders.

o Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the investment
retained at its proportionate share of net asset value at the
date control was lost. The carrying amount of such investment
at 1 January 2010 has not been restated.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FEEEEOR @

(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Basis of consolidation from 1 January 2010

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date through
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to
be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
Financial Instruments.: Recognition and Measurement either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is classified as equity, it shall not be
remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Business combinations from 1 January 2010 (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after

4
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reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain BEENATE REFRFHER

purchase. EZHEERBRARRAZEWE
Wz o

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any RAFHERE - B RK AR

accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment MRAFREBETZE - HEBEREE

annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances ﬁ{’ﬁ)ﬁmﬁ“ﬁﬂﬁ BEBEEHBEEL

indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group NEBERKREE A

performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of WETE BT HEEERE R
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which PELBM(KBEEEEUMA

the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included
in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Business combinations prior to 1 January 2010 but after
1 January 2005

In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements which were
applied on a prospective basis, the following differences applied to
business combinations prior to 1 January 2010:

° Business combinations were accounted for using the purchase
method. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs. The non-
controlling interest was measured at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

° Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted
for as separate steps. Any additional acquired share of interest
did not affect previously recognised goodwill.

° When the Group acquired a business, embedded derivatives
separated from the host contract by the acquiree were not
reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination
resulted in a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modified the cash flows that otherwise would have
been required under the contract.

° Contingent consideration was recognised if, and only if, the
Group had a present obligation, the economic outflow was
more likely than not and a reliable estimate was determinable.
Subsequent adjustments to the contingent consideration were
recognised as part of goodwill.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company'’s investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to joint
control, resulting in none of the participating parties having unilateral
control over the economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s investments in its jointly-controlled entities are
accounted for by the proportionate consolidation method, which
involves recognising its share of the jointly-controlled entities’ assets,
liabilities, income and expenses with similar items in the consolidated
financial statements on a line-by-line basis. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its jointly-
controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the jointly-controlled entities, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Biological assets
Biological assets represent forest crop in the PRC.

Biological assets are living plants involved in the agricultural activities
of the transformation of biological assets into agricultural produce
for sale or into additional biological assets. Biological assets and
agricultural produce, are measured at fair value less costs to sell at
initial recognition and at the end of each reporting period. The fair
value less costs to sell at the time of harvest is deemed as the cost
of agricultural produce for further processing, if applicable. If an
active market exists for a biological asset or agricultural produce
with reference to comparable specie, growing condition and
expected yield of the crops, the quote price in that market is adopted
for determining the fair value of that asset.

If an active market does not exist, the Group uses the most recent
market transaction price, provided that there has not been a
significant change in economic circumstances between the
transaction date and the end of the reporting period, or the market
prices for similar assets adjusted to reflect differences to determine
fair values. The gain or loss arising on initial recognition and
subsequent changes in fair values less costs to sell of biological
assets is recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which it arise. Upon the sale of the agricultural produce as
forestry products, the carrying amount is transferred to cost of sales
in the consolidated income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than biological assets, financial
assets and a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated income
statement in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the consolidated income statement in the period in which it arises.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Disposal group held for sales

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sales transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the disposal group is
available for immediate sale in its present condition. Disposal groups
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the disposal
groups’ previous carrying amount and fair value less estimated costs
to sell.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or
supply of goods and services, or for administrative purpose (other
than leasehold land and buildings and construction in progress) are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Leasehold land and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purpose, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at their revalue
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair value.
Increases in valuation are credited to the property revaluation
reserve. Decreases in valuation are first offset against increases on
earlier valuations in respect of the same property and are thereafter
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Any subsequent increases are credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income up to the amount previously
charged and thereafter to property revaluation reserve.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient to
write off their costs net of expected residual values over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives and
residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings The shorter of the lease terms

or 50 years
Leasehold improvements, — 5% ~20%
furniture, office equipment
and motor vehicles
Plant and machinery — 10%

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenances costs are charged to
the consolidated income statement during the year in which they
are incurred.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

All non-qualifying expenditures and expenses incurred on other non-
qualifying development activities are charged as expenses to the
consolidated income statement in the year in which such expenses
are incurred.

Upon disposal of leasehold buildings, the relevant portion of the
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the property revaluation reserve to retained profits.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year which
item is derecognised.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction and pending installation and is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs
of construction of buildings, the cost of plant and machinery and
interest charges arising from borrowings used to finance these
assets during the year of construction or installation and testing, if
any. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed and
are available for intended use. When the assets concerned are
brought into use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
in the preceding paragraphs.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both the
liability and conversion option are classified separately into respective
items on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument. At the date of issue, the liability
component is recognised at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

The equity component, represented the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible notes equity reserve until the embedded conversion
option is exercised in which case the balance stated in convertible
notes equity reserve will be transferred to share premium. Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated
in convertible notes equity reserve will be released to the retained
profits. No gain or loss is recognised in consolidated income
statement upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability component and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when an entity of the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value, plus transaction costs those are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss), as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in consolidated income statement.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and receivable. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The accounting policy adopted is set out below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determined payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

The carrying amount of the financial assets are reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount are reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When trade and other receivables are considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
consolidated income statement.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
financial asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FEEFECR @

(Continued)

LT H @

(i) Financial liabilities and equity (ii) ZRA FRIBEAR

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by an entity
of the Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals and convertible notes interest payable
are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4 FEFIFEOR @

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(iii) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carry amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in consolidated
income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including
prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the income statement
S0 as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease
terms.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
consolidated income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the consolidated income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Employee benefits
(i) Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Retirement benefits scheme (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
(the “Central Scheme”) operated by the local municipal
government in the PRC. The respective local municipal
government in the PRC undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired staff of
these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these subsidiaries
with respect to the Central Scheme is to meet the required
contributions under the Central Scheme. The contributions
are charged to the consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Central
Scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment
or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic
possibility of withdrawal.

Employee entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
payment are recognised when they accrue to the employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service payment as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FEEFECR @

(Continued)
Share-based payments

Equity-settled-share based payment transactions

Where share options are awarded to employees, the fair value of
the options at the date of grant is charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting
the number of equity instruments expected to vest at the end of
each reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount
recognised over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored
into the fair value of the options granted. As long as all other vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether
the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense
is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before they
vest, the increase in the fair value of the options, measured
immediately before and after the modification, is also charged to
the consolidated income statement over the remaining vesting
period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than
employees, the consolidated income statement is charged with the
fair value of goods and services received.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measurement at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when goods are delivered and title has passed
or when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rates applicable
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimates future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that assets
net carrying amount.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment is established.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Income taxes

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in consolidated
income statement except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case they are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and
all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the
tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless
it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends
are recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

4

FIEEBAEERAT
T -TFFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 3 Y 5 e B ek

EEEGFBOR @

P &)

HEEREEHAEEERARLZ
BROISMER - BETAIEN
THESHRZEEMSIBRZE
HUHEEZR  BEARBEALTEE
S BN RERREN 2 EEN
BE(EETASERKA G
) - MRBERHMB AR ZRE
FslBizERMTER  MRER
MER - RSB DB AR &
ZEERAIBRRRGATETS
O# B THMER - 8l
RRNATREFEARR @B 2 ER -

JERERR < IRIE R A B R IRIRE
ENBERHECRHRERIE
B UHREHERARTE
RAZHREAE - RIERIBEE
REBEGEERRGE -

SESES RS HRTHELTN
REEZKREE - MRTBAHE
RERHERNAFINERE
2B REErE T
FE - AR A BEEUS R Z B
AR B A EREHIR SRR
FLARE -

DRI B ETEL 2 BBINTIE R
SNEBREZEEERET U
TR o



SUPERB SUMMIT INTERNATIONAL TIMBER COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 5 Y 25 e B ek

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

o in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

° in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the Group entities in a currency other
than the currency of the primary economic environment in which it
operates (the “functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled
monetary assets and liabilities are similarly recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
for foreign currency borrowings qualifying as a hedge of a net
investment in a foreign operation.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency (Continued)

Change in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of the security, and other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as
equities classified as available-for-sale are included in the fair value
reserve in equity.

On consolidation, the results of overseas operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place. All assets and liabilities of overseas
operations, including goodwill arising on the acquisition of those
operations, are translated at the rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising on translating the opening net
assets at opening rate and the results of overseas operations at
actual rate are recognised directly in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity. Exchange
differences recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of group entities’ separate financial
statements on the translation of long-term monetary items forming
part of the Group’s net investment in the overseas operation
concerned are reclassified to the foreign currency translation reserve
if the item is denominated in the functional currency of the Group or
the overseas operation concerned.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are transferred
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of
the profit or loss on disposal.
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4 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(iv)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly, through one or
more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in
which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family member of
such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individuals;
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(v)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

(vij close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

(vi) close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

4

FIEEBAEERAT
T -TFFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 3 Y 5 e B ek

FEFFHEOR @)

WAL @

V) ZBALTNAEEIBEHE
BN ZEAERZES
18 I 1 7% 2 B B 1% 18 A5t

g -

(vi) EAIMERA L 2T AEZ
ERRFIHTARA T EZ
BERIALHZZERIALF
BIZREKE -

(vii)y ERMERIALZ TR REZ
ERRFRTIARM AT EZ
ERIALSHZZERIALF

BREKE -
vig. ¥

RUMBRERF2RZIEEDER
ENHEEBZERNEVBER
RRER  ZMBERERREE
RRTREEREBRM  AREH
BEB LR D BEERIELFT
fl e

MUEE2MENME  BRIEDHE
BEERAUNKESBREERR
RAEHE  4AETFHE  BF
A ER - AEDBLE MR
HREZ T EREEREZ Y
*EM GRMEREREE DT

EOFETE - BREBIZEERLE
“*ﬁﬁ AU REBDIZAE - BlT]
AptEtE -



SUPERB SUMMIT INTERNATIONAL TIMBER COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 5 Y 25 e B ek

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which
are described in note 4, management has made the following
judgments that have significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are also discussed
below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at each reporting period. Non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs to sell is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of
the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account their
estimated residual value. The Company assesses annually the
residual value and the useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment and if the expectation differs from the original estimates,
such differences from the original estimates will affect the
depreciation charges in the year in which the estimates change.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment loss recognised in respect of trade and
other receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and aging analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgment. A considerable amount of judgment is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were
to deteriorate, resulting in impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional impairment loss may be required.

Valuation of share options granted

The fair value of share options granted was calculated using the
Black-Scholes valuation model which requires the management’s
estimates and assumptions on significant calculation inputs,
including the estimated life of share options granted, the volatility
of share price and expected dividend yield. Change in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Fair values of biological assets

Management estimates at the end of the reporting period fair values
less costs to sell of biological assets of paper mulberry trees and
pine trees with reference to market prices and professional
valuations. Management considers that these are presently an
absence of effective financial instruments for hedging against the
pricing risks with the underlying agricultural produce. Un-anticipated
volatile changes in market prices of the underlying agricultural
produce could significantly affect the fair values of these biological
assets and result in fair value remeasurement losses in future
accounting periods.
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Operating segment information

From the perspective of the Group’s senior management, it is
considered that assessment of operating performance is
focused on the Group as a whole (for continuing operations)
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment. Therefore management considers the Group has
one reporting segment i.e. the integrated timber business.

The electronic consumer products business was discontinued
in 2009 and was disposed during the year (note 15).

Reconciliation of segment information to the information
presented in the consolidated financial statements has not
been presented, as the reconciling items are considered to

be immaterial.

(b) Geographical information

No geographical information is shown as the revenue from
external customers and non-current assets from continuing
operations of the Group are substantially derived from activities

or located in the PRC.

(c) Information about major customers

Included in revenues arising from the integrated timber
business are revenues of approximately HK$45,084,000
(2009: HK$7,937,000) which arose from sales to the Group’s

largest customer.

7 REVENUE

An analysis of revenue from continuing operations is as follows:
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2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
Income from logging and trading AMEEKREE A
of timber and related products KIHERBE R Z WA 53,677 16,800




HIEFBRAEERQTF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 3 Y 5 e B ek

T -TFFR

8 OTHER INCOME 8 JABUA
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT T
Continuing operations BERSEEL
Rental income el A - 132
Interest on bank deposits RITFERZFE 157 42
Interest income from RE—REEFZFEWA
a related party (Note 41) (MI5E41) - 9,900
Sundry income MIEUWA 621 1,493
778 11,567
9 OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9 il 4 B i 4H
2010 2009
—E—FF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Continuing operations HEREXER
Gain arsing from changes EMBEEZ ATFEES
in fair value less costs B E R AN E
to sell of biological assets pd & 83,498 417,702
Discount on acquisition of Uy B% — R B BB A B BRI 25
additional interest in a subsidiary ZHTEE - 375,022
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A 7 2 Wk F 58 66,572 -
Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —EM B R 7 & k&
and release of the RERZ W 558
counter guarantee - 206,113
Impairment loss for initial write-down — #1FHUR IS EH & 2 HE 45
of the disposal group 2 BEEE
held for sale - (222,571)
Gain on disposal of property, plant LEWME - HERZERE
and equipment - 42
Impairment loss of property, BEE - BEREREREERE
plant and equipment written back - 89,036
Exchange gains, net P& 5 s - F5 1,961 —
152,031 865,344
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10

11

FINANCE COSTS 10 S8 AR
2010 2009
—E-FF —IENF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
Continuing operations HEREXER
Interest on: LARIEE 2 FE
Bank loan wholly repayable BARAFREIEEZ
within five years RITER - 12,894
Convertible notes QIEY e 1,192 1,369
1,192 14,263
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 11 BRBE i % A
Continuing operations R BB
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): SEzBRHANEFE0E, GG
A)
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHBT FHET
Cost of inventories sold EEFE KA 44,502 18,836
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERZBZITE
and equipment 1,608 2,094
Amortisation of prepaid land TS £ b 70 & 3 5
lease payments 2,963 1,639
Minimum lease payments under wEHE s HE T
operating leases for leasehold land REFHEHERM R
and buildings - 6,112
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BRI BN &
Current year KEE 1,006 1,100
Under-provision in prior years TFEBRETR 328 150
Employee benefit expense (excluding BB F|5 X
directors’ remuneration — note 12) (MEEEENe — W12
— Wages and salaries and —I&ERFER
other benefits H 18 A 11,749 12,893
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIREFE B K
contributions 148 353
— Share-based payments — ARRD B ET 2 R 1,268 42,973
13,165 56,219
Other share-based payments H b AR D AEME 2[R 11,886 38,199
Write-down of inventories WoRF & - 234
Impairment loss on property, plant M - BB REE 2 RERSE
and equipment - 25,599
Impairment loss on trade receivables  [EURE 5 8R1E 2 R EE 18 - 14,569
Impairment loss on other receivables H b fE W 5k I8 2 BB BT 1R - 134
Exchange (gains)/losses, net BN (W) BB FE (1,962) 123
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12 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules and section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is

12 #HHMW4E

RIE ETRAREERAEDISE
11GERBEZAFEEEHE A

as follows: T
The Group
55
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHE T
Fees we 225 180
Other emoluments H At i & B
— Salaries and other benefits — FE REAMER 4,067 3,294
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIKEFIET B R
contributions 42 51
— Performance related bonuses — BIRIFENE 2 IEAT - -
— Share-based payments — IR BER 2T 1,268 14,290
5,377 17,635
5,602 17,815

Details of directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December
2010 are as follows:

BHE-_ZE—ZEF+-_A=+—H
HFE2EEMEFBNOT -

Retirement
benefits  Performance
Salaries and scheme related  Share-based
Fees other benefits contributions bonuses  payments Total
fig ek BAEN  ERRAH RS
AN HE L8 2 REBZAR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER TER TER
Executive Directors Y178z

Mr. Lee Chi Kong ZEEES - 1,000 12 - 235 1,47
Mr. Jing Bin SEEE - 700 12 - 469 1,181
Mr. Cheng Man For gypis - 982 12 - 235 1,229
Mr. Law Wai Fai (Note)* BEEEE () - 1,385 6 - - 1,391
- 4,067 42 - 939 5,048

Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES

Directors

Mr. Cheung Wi Tak** REREL" 56 - - - 141 197
Mr. Li Xiangjun** ZHERE 4 - - - 04 135
Mr. Chen Xiaoming* B/ NBR A 10 - - - - 10
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen* REEnsE 29 - - - - 29
Mr. Wong Yun Kuen* EFELE 2 - - - - 2
Mr. Zhu Quang Qian * RrasrE 60 - - - 04 154
225 - - - 329 554
Total @t 225 4,067 42 - 1,268 5,602

Note: Salaries and other benefits of Mr. Law included compensation for
early termination of service contract of HK$800,000.

s« BEEZHSREMBEMNEE
RATRIERBEOZHE
800,000/ 7T ©
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12 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continuea)

Details of directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December

12 #HHMWE @

BE-FEAFH-A=+-8

2009 are as follows: LEFEZEEMESFBOT .
Retirement
benefits  Performance
Salaries and scheme related  Share-based
Fees  other benefits  contributions bonuses payments Total
g 2R RIVEN  ERRED bR
HinER B LA BERZNR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThT T T Tin TERL TERL
Executive Directors Y178%
M. Lee Chi Kong R - 855 11 - 5,208 6,069
Mr. Lam Ping Kei WYELE - 9% 2 - - 9%
Mr. Li Jun ZRER - 109 2 - - 1
Mr. Jing Bin SEEE - 400 12 - 3,800 4212
M. Law Wa Fai BRELE - 1,000 12 - 527 1539
Mr. Cheng Man For iy eyt - 834 12 - 4,760 5,606
- 3,204 51 - 14,290 17,635
Independent Non-Executive BUkyTEs
Directors
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen SREHE 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Wong Yuen Kuen EBELE 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Zhu Quang Qian REaEs 60 - - - - 60
180 - - - - 180
Total &t 180 3,294 51 - 14,290 17,815

*

*k

resigned during the relevant year
appointed during the relevant year

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed

to waive any remuneration during 2009 and 2010.

o REBFERET

O OREBFEERE

BMEESHELARAERE_ZFZ
NER-ZT-FFEAME 2L

B -
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13

14

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included four (2009:
four) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in note 12
above. Details of the remaining one (2009: one) non-director, highest
paid individual, for the year are as follows:

13

i 35 % 6 A L

FA - BURSFMALTEED
(ZZEZEAF O EF - K
E7MEFBEEHNMEI2 o &K
FEHT U (ZZETAEF  —
) FEFZSHMALZFHBN
T

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET

Salaries and other benefits e hEMER 500 677
Retirement benefits scheme RRAE AT B 3R

contributions — 12

Performance related bonuses ERIRHY 2 AT = —

500 689

The non-director, highest paid individuals remuneration were all
within HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000.

During the year, except as disclosed in note 12, no emoluments
were paid to the five highest paid individuals (including directors
and other employees) as inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss to office (2009: Nil).

IEERSFMHMATZHEeIR
F0/%8 7T 21,000,000/ 7T 2 fH °

RAFEER - BRHE12PRES
S ES A RSFHMAL (2
REEREMER) MEMBE
TERIMAREZ B R E
(ZZTNhF : |) o

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14 Pt i X
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Continuing operations BEREER
Current tax: REFZHIE -
Hong Kong 6 - -
The PRC s 19 _

19 —
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14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14 Wi BB % =)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2009:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, no Hong Kong profits
tax has been provided for as the Group did not generate any taxable
profits from continuing operations in Hong Kong (2009: nil).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. Under the Law of the PRC
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is
25% (2009: 25%).

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the
consolidated income statement as follows:

EEFNGHBEAFERETBEL
ZARET FE R R IR T K 16.5%
“TENF 16.5%)FE

RBE-_ZT-—ZF+_A=1+—
EIJJ:iF HREBRELEZF
BREEXBIEE L ERIERY
/mﬂ BB BB NER (=
ZTNEF | o

FEEMBEERELE ZRETIR
BEaERRZBITHEE -
*E%FEP Bl ZEHE (¥R

BRIED) REEMBREE I
1J PENBARZHEE A&
25% (ZZEZENF : 25%) °

AR 15 7% 5 S B M R R A UK
MR ZEHERMT

2010 2009
—E-=fF —ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHET
Continuing operations BEREEL
Profit before tax R 52 AT A 81,571 683,220
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate BEBNESHTE16.5%
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) —ZTNEF 1 16.5%) 13,459 112,731
Effect of different tax rates EEMEEAEREE 2B AT
of subsidiaries operating ZTRABE R
in other jurisdictions 19 7,501
Tax effect of expenses not DR HBRFASZ 2
deductible for tax purpose MG 2 2,403 56,504
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBIMA Z
for tax purpose M & (17,692) (180,605)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised K AERFL IS ET1E 2 T s & 1,830 3,869
Tax expense for the year REERBHZ 19 ;-
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15

DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE

On 8 April 2010, the Company entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with Super Giant Assets Limited, which is
wholly owned by Mr. Lam Ping Kei, a substantial shareholder and a
former executive director of the Company, to dispose of the entire
interest in a subsidiary of the Group, E-Today Technology Limited
(“E-Today”) and its subsidiaries carried out all of the Group’s
electronic consumer products business. The disposal of electronic
consumer products business is consistent with the Group’s long-
term policy to focus its timber business.

The disposal was completed on 23 June 2010. Details of the assets
and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of the profit or loss
on disposal, are disclosed in note 35.

The discontinued operations’ results of electronic consumer

15 4k i 2 A AU

RZZE—ZFMANR - AFH
Super Giant Assets Limited (12
AEERRRATAITESMHEHE
EEREME)HHESE B
‘A a]E-Today Technology Limited
([E-Today] * AR RHKIBA
AREEBCBEETHEER
() 2R LERGHEER
Wik BT HEBERFEB2HE
FEEEFEITRNEMARER 2K
AR -

PEEEOR _E-ZTFNA -
+=HZEK - TLEEERAE
2B REE 2B ERK
5% & ©

AERETHEEREHZEK

products business for the year are as follows: IFRE RS 2 EWT
2010 2009
—E-=fF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Revenue Wees 204,071 414,315
Cost of sales 5 & P AR (187,873) (386,344)
Other income H g A 832 3,958
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEAST (6,958) (13,890)
Administrative expenses TER X (10,866) (18,046)
Other expenses Hms (5,664) (16,588)
Loss before tax FrEi R ES 1R (6,458) (16,595)
Income tax expense FriSHi = (633) (2,044)
Loss for the year KFERE (7,091) (18,639)
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15 DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE 15 FefE iz AL
(Continued) (4&)
The assets and liabilities of the electronic consumer product RZZEFENF+=_A=+—H"
business classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2009 are as NEARBELECETFHEEED
follows: X BERBENT !
2009
—EEAEF
HK$’000
FHExT
Prepaid land lease payments A T E R 24,875
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ B NEE 160,000
Inventories FE 81,308
Trade receivables EUE 5 8R1E 91,193
Prepayments, deposits TENEIE - 5] & RE M EKFIE
and other receivables 18,567
Cash and cash equivalents HRekReEBERE 49,368
Total assets BEME 425,311
Impairment loss for initial WO FSE & 2 B4R
write-down of the disposal group 2 R EEE
held for sale (222,571)
Assets of a disposal group classified D EAFIELRE 2 HEHE 2 EE
as held for sale 202,740
Trade payables BB SRE 50,148
Other payables and accruals M FE T 5RI8 I FE ET IR 64,592
Liabilities directly associated HAYBARIELE Z HEMERIEE
with the assets of a disposal group EXAEZ8E
classified as held for sale 114,740
Net assets directly associated M ERNEZRE s EEFE
with the disposal group 88,000
The net cash flows incurred by the electronic consumer product BT BEEEREREACZRER
business are as follows: SFRBEAT ¢
2010 2009
—E-=fF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
Operating activities KL EB) 92,356 19,198
Investing activities KEES (3,865) (17,139)
Financing activities BB S B (1,012) —

87,479 2,059
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16 DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2010, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2009: Nil).

17 EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued

operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following

Y ES Y
B B W B DA IR B R
EARE (Z2TNF - £) -

17 B R
KAFKFB KOS
X

REAEBEAREERERLEE
BN TIRETHIBUIERTE -

data:
2010 2009
—E—FF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Earnings Fi
Earnings for the purpose of basic ATEERERENEA AT
earnings per share (RREAB AT EHEF)
(profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company) 74,461 586,449
Effect of dilutive potential BEEELTRRTE
ordinary shares:
Interest on convertible notes ABRER 2 A 1,192 1,369
Earnings for the purpose of STESREERFMAZAT
diluted earnings per share 75,653 587,818
2010 2009
—E-=fF ZZEENF
Number of Number of
shares shares
KR EE & E
Number of shares K72 E
Weighted average number of TESRERRF A
ordinary shares for the purpose of 7 LA NAE I8
basic earnings per share 3,298,576,581 2,622,293,842

Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:
Share options issued
by the Company
Convertible notes

BHEBEELTBRERZTE

NEEITZ B
BE ST

5,748,551 —
1,192,320,000 148,826,663

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of
diluted earnings per share

SHE SRS RN A
Z BB

4,496,645,132 2,771,120,505
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17 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continueq)
From continuing operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company is

based on the following data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

17 BB =)

2 H 5 4 588 SR

DR AR S 5 A %
BEREARBERFTIRET

SIS

BABT R T RA;E -

2010 2009
—E-=fF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Profit for the year attributable NEEBE ANEEREEET
to owners of the Company 74,461 586,449
Loss for the year from REERIELEEEK 2
discontinued operations KEEEE 7,091 18,639
Earnings for the purpose of ATERERBELCEER
basic earnings per share from ZEREREBFRA 2 ZF
continuing operations 81,552 605,088
Effect of dilutive potential BEBSL R FE
ordinary shares:
Interest on convertible notes AR ER 258 1,192 1,369
Earnings for the purpose of FTERERBELEER
diluted earnings per share from 2 BRESERN A &
continuing operations 82,744 606,457

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both
basic and diluted earnings per share.

NN

EAETE o

Ny

bR EAR R EE R TR
CES
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17 EARNINGS PER SHARE (cContinued)

18

From discontinued operations

Loss per share for the discontinued operations is HK0.215 cents
per share (2009: HKO.711 cents per share). The calculation is based
on the loss for the year from the discontinued operations and the
denominators detailed above for basic per share. No diluted loss
per share has been presented for 2009 and 2010 as the share
options and convertible notes outstanding have anti-dilutive effects

on the basic loss per share amounts presented.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represent:

17 SRR =)

% A OB EH

ERIEEXB 2 BREREAE
02158 M (—FENEF : Bk
0.7117) - L IRIBEL LK
ERBZAFEBRAN EAFE
BREARZEMFE - HREHEAR
1T 2 P IO I 3R AR SRR Y P
2Nz BEEABREBEAEAR
BENE MUBER _—TTNF
R—_E-—ZF2JERBEE

1B e

18 TAT LIBALE X

SEZEMNLHAERIER

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ZTENEF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FAET

Medium-term lease land in the PRC R E R HHEE 1+ 61,311 87,512
Analysed for reporting purpose as: BREZENDTA

— non-current assets — EMBEE 59,790 85,437

— current assets — RBEE 1,521 2,075

61,311 87,512
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19 Y ~ W5 Mok i

Furniture
fixtures,
Leasehold land Plantand  equipmentand  Construction
and buildings machinery  motor vehicles in progress Total
B
Hg BEmEN
1HRET HERME FERAE ERIR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThER AL TiERL ThERL AL
Cost or valuation HAREE
At 1 January 2009 R-ZENE-A-H
A cost R - 162,315 27,133 18,947 208,395
At valuation e 76,750 - - - 76,750
76,750 162,315 27,133 18,947 285,145
Additions ME 342 23,346 6,169 5,797 35,654
Transfer gz 6,208 - 3 (6,260) -
Write-back of property, plant BENE  BREREE
and equipment - 89,036 - - 89,036
Write-clown of property, plant ANz BEREE
and equipment (4,369) (64,314) (6,165) - (74,844)
Disposals HE - (89,735) (2,487) - (92,222)
Reclassified as held for sale ENARARELE (79,221) (121,227) (20,521) (18,527) (239,496)
Bxchange realignment Bia% 266 579 77 43 965
At31December 2009 R-BEART-AZT-R - . . SURNUS N .
Additions AE - - 2,139 - 2,139
Disposals e - - (1514) - (1,514)
Exchange realignment B A% - - 9 - 92
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZE+-F=1-H - - 4,955 - 4,055
Accumulated depreciation ZHITERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2009 RZZENE-A-H 90 85,854 15,047 - 100,991
Provided for the year EhEk 1,585 14,273 3,048 - 19,106
Write-down of property, plant RNz BEREE
and equipment (164) (35,770) (1,995) - (37,929)
Disposals e - (460) (859) - (1,319)
Reclassified as held for sale ENABRRELE (1511) (64,198) (13,787) - (79,496)
Exchange realignment 5 3% - 301 4 - 343
At31 December 2009 R-BEART-A=T-R -___ N = L% SR o 166
Provided for the year EREfE - - 1,608 - 1,608
Disposals e - - (652) _ (652)
Exchange realignment B AR - - 30 - 30
ALS1 December2010 o_ _ _ _ _ R-%-8Ff-p=t-8 - W =L L &k
Carrying amounts FEfE
At 31 December 2010 RZB-BE£+-A=t-R - - 2,213 - 2,213

At 31 December 2009 R-EENE+-A=1-H = = 2,542 = 2,542
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20 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

20 AWE i

—E-TFFR

2010 2009

—E-=F —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

At 1 January w—H—H 3,591,610 3,164,998

Direct sales BEEHE (34,430) (2,067)
Gain arising from changes EMEE 2 A TFEEBR

in fair value less costs to SHE RN AR E A

sell of biological assets pdl & 83,498 417,702

Exchange realignment bE 3 % 136,379 10,977

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 3,777,057 3,591,610

The analysis of fair value of biological assets by location is as follows:

EMEEZ NP ERBEDELD

™
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
The PRC FE FET FETT
Hebei b 34,941 33,041
Yunan £ 3,742,116 3,558,569
3,777,057 3,591,610

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group’s biological assets were
valued by an independent valuer, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors
Limited.

Land related to biological assets are separately disclosed and
accounted for under prepaid land lease payments.

In valuing the inventory of standing trees, the valuer has considered
the three approaches to value with reference to inventory of standing
trees as well as the accounting standard, and found that market
approach i.e. the market-based comparable method is the most
reasonable approach to value. This method uses the present market
value in terms of price per unit volume of the final product and the
total merchantable volume of timber in the concession as basis for
coming up with the estimated value. The underlying theory of this
approach is existing market price is dependent parameter since it
reflects how much the buyer is willing to pay and how much the
seller is willing to give up his goods and services.

R-EBE-ZER_TTNF+Z
A=+—H SBEZEMEET
F 98 37 (B A A BT TR Z AP A IR
NEMEE -

|

HAYEERB LI EBR
B YA AENIMEERE
—F o

MY R 178 2 BAREER - {4
@%“@%ﬁﬁﬁ%ZﬁWZﬁ

ENgHENMZER=RM&EES
/Qi I%’Yﬁiﬁu M iﬁfETE/ZEEU:tIE{E
BZ&EBE - WEEETR
AAMZz &RERZ BEMNBE
ZBRImERERMERRfH
BEZAMEBRERTHEEE - A
AEAMEEEE - WEHEE
ZEARE®A  BITHEREN
KEz28  AHERBREFTRER
ﬁﬁZFV&EE%Em&Ef

B ERGmESWERZ B -
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20 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

In using the market approach the valuer has taken the following
into consideration:

° Average diameter and length of round logs being sold in the
locality;

° The diameter at breast height and the merchantable height of
the standing trees;

° Parameters used in classifying young, mid-aged, near mature
and mature trees;

° Species of the standing trees;

° The quantity of timber based on the adjusted inventory
provided to us; and

° Cutting cost, transportation cost, forestry fund, and other
associated costs necessary to process the standing trees to
round logs.

The valuer understands, that it is the intention of the Group to sell
the biological assets as i) round logs to sawmills in their respective
locality, i) raw material in its solid and engineered wood factory and
iii) process some of the harvested timber to sawn timber in its
sawmill. Factors considered in selling harvested timber are location
of the forest area, species of timber, volume of timber and
requirement of the Group’s subsidiaries owned factories. The valuer
has assumed in its valuation that the entire inventory will be sold in
their respect locality as round logs since the Group’s subsidiaries
intend to use only a small quantity of the timber for processing in
owned factories.

20 EWEE @

FERATISHEER - HEME
ERATEE

s HEEHMBEZEMZFHE
ARkEE :

s BRFEZEAZMSHEE
KMERMHE

o DK ERAE B
RRE R B Rk 2 28

o BREEMAZESR:

s REESMERMHZERE
AV FEEZAMERE
54

o EBREEEZBARRER S
[EI#1 P 75 B R S BREKAC AN »
BRARAN  MEXESRE
L ARRE AR AR

MEMMNE  SEEEEEME
EER  )EM  ETRESZEM
R 2 SEARR ¢ )R EF
FE R N 48 & AR R K i) &R 40 2 5%
AR & T Fa AR ONIABRFERK 7
IR 2 A - BLHE D IRKR
MFrE B2 AR/MEGZ
B AR AMEFERE
EREEEZHMBRAANE 2K
FAnAREIE - fEEMAEJERS
FERXEMBAMEERSHER
EFX Bz E AR ML
T EAKEZMBAREREK
RE MR IB D EARM
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20 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued) 20 Y& RE 2

During the valuer’s on-site inspection, the valuer was informed that
young and mid-age trees are also marketable but at lower prices
compared to near mature, mature and over mature trees. For this
reason, the valuer has valued the entire timber inventory in the
Forestry Reports.

In valuing the inventory of standing tree using the market approach,
the valuer has used the average mill gate round log prices taking
into consideration tree species, age and location.

Reasonable recovery rates to allow for losses before and during
harvesting as well as costs required to harvest and transport the
timber from the forest to local point of sales were then deducted to
arrive at its opinion of value. The other costs that were considered
in the valuer’s valuation are: harvesting and transportation cost to
main road or point of sales, local and national taxed fund, forestry
road allowance and forest management cost.

EEMERBMA - HEMSELY
WRFREEINAAETS LT
& MEEARK  EREIEF
EZBABRAERRE - ER
R HEMS ANRERRS
NZ 2 BAMEFEETHE -

HEMERB TS HEEERRK
TFRZEAz FEETHER
ERAEAR BN FHE (25
ABIARTELR - e R P t Bh) 71

sets
= o
>t

HEMZEEEREFAREZ
B X (BRI IR 2 1B
KAVEEM - WHIBR K KA A
HEMER S HERATE 2K
) o HEMEGREREEEZH
AR A K RBEEK
BRIHER A - it RER
MEBES  MEEZHRHENE
AR o
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21 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21 B A F 2B E

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Unlisted shares, at cost JELETRD - A E 1,455,350 1,536,508

FARRIZRBEENREBAR
Z W () BB A R 2 B8R R
HiR - 2R MEETEEERR -

The balances due from (to) subsidiaries included in the Company’s
current assets and current liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

RZB—ZEF+_A=+—8"

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2010 are

as follows: FEWBRARIZFERAT
Place of
incorporation/  Nominal value
establishment of paid-up share/ Percentage of
Name and operations  registered capital equity attributable
EMRL/RY  BRRE/ to the Company Principal activities
Gk REXHE AMEREE NAEERAEA TEER
2010 2009
—B-%8F “EENE
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
B BER  EE RE
Green & Good Group Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$100 100 - 100 - Investment holding
(“Green & Good) Islands LARI0ET REER
BIEREARRA(H2E]) EBRRHES
Leeka Wood Co., Ltd. (‘Leeka Wood") The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100 - 100 Exploitation and management
G1EREBRAT i AR 100,000,007 of timber resources
(Mkz&A%]) RERERMALR
BERE(EE)ERAR The PRC RMBS,000,000 - 100 - 100 Exploitation and management
G AR %5,000,0007 of timber resources
REREBHALR
Superb Summit (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 - 100 - Provision of
Management Company Limited Bk TER1,000%T management services
i (EB)ERERAA RUEERRE
Felicity Max Limited (Note 1) British Virgin Ordinary US$10 100 - N/A N/A Investment holding
BEBRAE (F1) Islands ERR10%T NER  TER REZR
EBRAEE
Superb Summit International Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 - 100 N/A N/A Investment holding
Investment (Hong Kong) Limited B TARI0BT AR 1ER RAER
(Note 1&2)
FEEARRE (B8 ERAR (Wi 1k
MR EAEERAT The PRC RMB30,000,000 - - = 100 Exploitation and management
(*Hunan Leeka Wood) e AR%30,000,0007 of timber resources
(TimgzR]) REREBHAZR
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21 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21 B AR ZBE =
(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/  Nominal value
establishment of paid-up share/ Percentage of
Name and operations  registered capital equity attributable
FMAL/ R BAREK/ to the Company Principal activities
PGk REXH ARMEAEE NAEERAE AL IEER
2010 2009
—2-%8f% ZZENE
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
EE BB B8R Bz
E-Today Technology Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$600 - - 100 - Investment holding
(‘E-Today’) Islands LERE00ET RERR
E-Today Technology Limited RRERHE
(IE-Today))
Dej Electronic Co., Ltd. The PRC HK$10,200,000 - - - 100 Manufacture and sales of
Putian County, Fujian G 10,200,000 electronic products
BEAEHEEEETARAR HEREEETER
Putian Dexing Electronic Co., Ltd. The PRC HK$128,380,000 - - - 100 Manufacture and sales of
BREEETARLA Gl 128,380,000 7T HERHEETER
Putian Derong Electronic Co., Ltd. The PRC HK$63,000,000 - - - 100 Manufacture and sales of
BRTEXSTARAT Gl 63,000,000 7 HERHEETER
Zhejiang Yiwu Dexing Electronic Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC 1U3$9,950,000 - - - 100 Inactive
FI8BEEETERAA i 9,950 0007 EEEES
Tak Shun (Lam’s) Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - - - 100 Investment holding and
Limited Bk Non-voting deferred distribution of
& (HK) AR AR HK$10,000 electronic products
LRARBTERER REBRR
EREHR10,000E 7 PHETER
Advance Display Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - - 100 Sales of liquid crystal
ARETHINERAR Bk 10,000/ T HERRRETER
Tak Shun (Lam's) Macao Macau MOP500,000 - - - 100 Distribution of electronic
Commercial Offshore Limited ol 500,00012F7% products
&5 (RE) BFEER PHEFER
B2RHERLA
Note 1: The company was incorporated in 2010. FEET - FARRZE—ZTFF
g o AV
Note 2: Superb Summit International Investment (Hong Kong) Limited PEE2 - FERBEE (FB) A

changed its name to Superb Summit International Exchange
and Logistics Company Limited on 17 February 2011. The
company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Felicity Max Limited.

BRARIER-_ZT——F
“ATEHBEEER
U RFERRZ SR
ERRE - ZRBIRBE
BARRARZEZEWE

NS
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21 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

During the year, the Group disposed E-Today and its subsidiaries
and Hunan Leeka Wood and struck off a subsidiary. Further details
of these disposals are included in notes 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the
end of the reporting period or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

22 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had interests in the following
significant jointly-controlled entities:

Proportion of

21 B A ZH8E @

FA - KB HEE-Today & A
BRARAR AL 2 3 - X HIE
—EHEBAR - REFHEZE—
THBHENGRE W HERERME
35°

WEMBRRNHEERERFR
EAREAEMERES

EERA - ERAEIZAFH
BAR HAFREREEBKER
TENEEREEEFEZEEH
- BEERR THEMBHBEL
AZHMAEMNESARERT
£ o

22 )‘;ﬁ&*i& I 2% o) L 96 2

R-Z—FFE+-A=+—-H"
EEEAATE AR HIEE
ZHEm

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of voting power
establishment Class of registered capital and Principal
Name of entity and operations shares held held by the Group profit sharing activities
KBk
EER L
ERE® HYIREEHY FrsR AR HELA KRRl TEER
BMERAANR S The PRC Registered capital 70% 70% Measurement, inspection,
BERERLA i of Renminbi (RMB’) 1 each technology development
HMEAERAERE and sales of timber
AREBTARE )T and building material
AV REMZFE RE-
RS RHE
RARAEERAT The PRC Registered capital 70% 70% Sales of building material
H of RMB1 each and timber
AR GREE HERMRAM

AREAT
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22 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

23

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
interests in the jointly-controlled entities which are accounted for
using proportionate consolidation with the line-by-line reporting
format is set out below:

—E-TFFR

22 A 3% ) ¢ B e 2 Bt

(%)

TXHEHIIEER L FEG B e
BZPBEHMBE - DHIRZER

SRR HIERE

HIER -

2010 2009

—E-=fF ZTENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Non-current assets ERBEE 222 532
Current assets MEEE 5,874 5,848
Current liabilities mENAE (2,838) (327)
Net assets BESFE 3,258 6,053
Income WA 15,412 7,939
Expenses A (18,251) (6,648)
(Loss)/profit before tax BrFLAT (B51R) (2,839) 1,291
Income tax expense FriS i = (19) -
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (EB) & (2,858) 1,291

TRADE RECEIVABLES 23 MEWCE B MR

2010 2009

—E-=fF ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBT FAT

Trade receivables EUNE 5 BRIA 239 14,721
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REEEE - (14,721)
239 —

The Group normally allows credit terms ranging from 30 to 90 days

to its customers.

S B4 TEPB0E0RZE

&4
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23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 KR SR @

An aging analysis of the trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts at the end of the reporting period, based on the

RIBHERDAPME D RIME
HIR B E 5 RR (kR R AR

date of recognition of the sale, is as follows: ) ZERERITIT -
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
0 — 30 days 0 — 30H 210 —
31 — 60 days 31 — 60H - —
61 — 90 days 61 — 90H - —
Over 90 days Q0B KA £ 29 —
239 —

In the opinion of directors, the Group has provided sufficient
impairment on those trade receivables which are past due.

EXZR5 - SECHZEFEANZ
FEWE ZRRIBRT IR R SR ERHE

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows: RIEBE 2 EESHWNT
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
1 January —H—H 14,721 61,137
Impairment losses recognised FIEWE 5 RIEHER
in respect of trade receivables ZRIBEEE - 14,569
Reclassified to held for sale EOBEABIELS - (60,985)
Amount written off as uncollectible EAT R IR EITE B s 2 &5 (14,721) —
31 December +—A=+—8H - 14,721

As at 31 December 2009, included in the allowance for doubtful
debts were individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate

R-ZFFNE+_RA=+—8H"

REEBLEENE

AN E 8

balance of HK$14,569,000, which was 1 year past due. H—F 7 BIREZIRTE - HHhe
#8 /314,569,000 7T °
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances. SEWERZSEHRTTE TR

Ham e
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24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 24 TEAHE - 5T & RKE
OTHER RECEIVABLES i Bk JEH
The Group
£8
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Prepayment TR FIE 9,802 11,536
Deposits Hi3 116 504
Other receivables H th JE I8 33,566 132,654
Amount due from a related company & BFEE A A
— Bz EAR S ERR QA — Rz = A REEER R A 5,983 4,199
(“G&G Wood”) (I 2z =AR$IG]) A
49,467 148,893

25

The amount due from a related company is unsecured, interest free

and has no fixed terms of repayment.

FEN B R R IR R EE A - %
ENEETEEEDR -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 Be&RBAE&EFMEEH
The Group
£8
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’OO_O
FHET T
Bank balances RITEE R 6,551 50,034
Cash in hand FERS 136 352
Cash held in a licensed corporation ~ RiFEEABEE 2 RS 93,277 23,197
Cash and cash equivalents classified D iEAFIEHEEE RS
as assets held for sale kIReFEIEE - 49,368
99,964 122,951
Cash and cash equivalents from HEREEBMEEZ
continuing operations are RehkBeEEER
denominated in the following T3 EETE
currencies:
Hong Kong Dollars BT 93,402 31,226
Renminbi AR 6,509 42,357
US Dollars ETT 53 -
99,964 73,583

Cash and deposits with banks of HK$6,509,000 (2009:
HK$42,357,000) for the Group are denominated in RMB, which is
not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of
the PRC is subject to the exchange control imposed by the PRC

government.

Deposits with banks are interest bearing at the prevailing market

rates.

£EH 2R e KIRTT17386,509,000
BIT(ZEZTNF © 42,357,000/8
To) TIAARSIE - ARBELIE
AEREBRZERE  BEeAP
B P& [ 78 38 <7 R B U B b 2 A1

FEE ) -

RITERRBITNHMERGFE -
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26 TRADE PAYABLES

An aging analysis of the trade payables at the end of the reporting
period, based on the receipt of goods purchased, is as follows:

WA B 5% Ml K

RIEFABE 2 EWiksz A HimEl
DZMERRENESHERBAZR

RoMT
2010 2009
—g-8% —TThA
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
0 — 30 days 0 — 30H = —
31 — 60 days 31 — 60H — —
61 — 90 days 61 — 90H — —
91 — 180 days 91 — 1808 = —
Over 180 days 180H A 215 207
215 207
27 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS %%JEN%UE B Wit
The Group
£
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Other payables Eﬁtﬁ@fﬁ KIE 32,960 98,119
Accruals FESTFRIA 2,988 2,300
Receipt in advance %Euﬁm 12,768 10,060
Amount due to a related company JEAS BB R B

— G&G Wood — 2 BAREImKRIA 570 91,540
49,286 202,019
The amount due to a related company is unsecured, interest free JET BEE R R RIB REIER -

and has no fixed terms of repayment.

BN [E TE Eﬁ&,ﬁﬂﬁﬁ °
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28

29

DEFERRED TAXATION

No provision for deferred tax had been made as the Group did not
have any significant unprovided deferred tax in respect of the year
(2009: Nil).

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 17 October 2007, pursuant to the acquisition of 70% equity
interests in Green & Good from Superview International Limited
(“Superview”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, the
Company issued convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) as
partial settlement of the acquisition consideration.

On 27 November 2009, the Group completed the acquisition of
30% equity interests in Green & Good, which owned 100% equity
interests in Leeka Wood from Superview, the Company issued
convertible notes (A) (the “Convertible Notes (A)”) as partial
settlement of the acquisition consideration.

On 27 November 2009, pursuant to the release of the counter
guarantee obligations of Leeka Wood and G&G Wood under the
Counter Guarantee Agreements. The Company issued convertible
notes (B) (the “Convertible Notes (B)”) to Superview as the partial
settlement of the consideration.

28

29

B A Bt

SERFALBEFMEAREE
EIETIA - SR E IR
HEE(CTETAF 8 -

LEY 23

R-ZEZLE+A+TLER  RE
AAREEBRRESBERBRA
Al ([EEF]) WA 2 32 2 7T0%AX
D RERETABRERER
(TAT A SRR |) VAR S B0 0 U B
& -

RZZEENF+—A=+t8 "
EEZKABSWELSZ330%
BAEZ B BEBEZEN
F¥100% Az - RE)EITA[IR
AR A (A) (AT IRAREIR(A))) DA %S
E D UEERAE -

RZZEZNF+—A=Z+tR -
BZENREREZEZAFREAR
RRERBZ T ZRIERETE
fEBR o ARAIBRBEITABRRE
EB) ([T ZEB))) 38
BRE -
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29 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 29

Each of convertible notes is bifurcated into liability component and
equity component. The equity component is presented in equity
heading (“convertible notes equity reserve”). The movement of the
liability and equity components of the convertible notes for the year

SRS

LE 325307

FEHBERE D RBER DR
s Eb i - A I (TRl A
FEf)) 2 s NP
AMEERRZ BERERBOHR

is set out below: FRAZEBHHINNT
Convertible Convertible
Notes Notes Total
(A)
and (B)
A
TRREE ESINA(:) @t
(Note i) (Note ii)
(Hi3E1) (Bt i)
Date of issue 8.10.2007 27.11.2009
Maturity date 7.10.2009 26.11.2012
RITAH e S ZEENE
+ANE +—-A=Z++H
FEA ZETNF —E-ZF
+A+tH T—AZ1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT T
Liability components EEDR
At 1 January 2009 RZZEENEF-A—H 109,965 - 109,965
Issue of convertible notes ERNBTIARRE
during the year - 798,828 798,828
Conversion of convertible notes  E# AR Z iz (53,990) - (53,990)
Redemption of convertible notes B[ AR Z & (44,992) - (44,992)
Interest paid BRI (12,198) - (12,198)
Interest expenses MERZ 1,215 153 1,368
Change in fair value ATEZE - (798,828) (798,828)
At 31 December 2009 RZEEAF+-RA=T—H
and 1 January 2010 h—E-TF-f—H - 153 153
Interest expenses MERX - 1,192 1,192
At 31 December 2010 RZE-Z2F+ZA=1—H - 1,345 1,345
Equity components gﬁ"ﬂfﬁ
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A—H 11,018 - 11,018
Conversion of convertible notes  E#A A ARE (6,010) = (6,010)
Redemption of convertible notes F@ RREE (5,008) - (5,008)
Change in fair value AFEED) — 334,151 334,151
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF+ZA=1—H
and 1 January 2010 k=F-2F—-f—H — 334,151 334,151
Conversion of convertible notes  E# AR Z & - (159,624) (159,624)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-Z5+-RA=+—H - 174,527 174,527
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29 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(Note i)

ACQUISITION OF 70% EQUITY INTERESTS IN GREEN & GOOD
GROUP LIMITED

The principal terms of the Convertible Notes are as follows:

Date of issue

Aggregate principal amount
Denomination in multiple of
Interest rate

8 October 2007

HK$929.7 million

HK$10,000,000

1.0%, payable semi-annually in arrears

per annum

Conversion price applicable
Maturity date

HK$0.09 (Note)
2 years from the date of issue

Note: Conversion price was adjusted from HK$0.45 to HK$0.09 for bonus

(a)

(b)

(0

issue of share on 17 October 2007.

Conversion period

Apart from the portion of Restricted Convertible Notes (as described
below), the holders of the Convertible Notes shall have the rights at
any time and from time to time, following the date of issue of the
Convertible Notes, to convert the whole or any part of the outstanding
principal amount into new ordinary shares in the Company. The shares
to be issued and allotted upon conversion shall rank pari passu in all
respects among themselves and with all other ordinary shares in issue
by the Company on the date of such allotment and issue.

Restricted Convertible Notes

As the profit guarantee cannot be fulfilled by Green & Good, thus the
restricted convertible notes HK$300 million (the “Restricted
Convertible Notes”) were cancelled in satisfying the profit guarantee
given by the vendor regarding to the acquisition of 70% equity interests
in Green & Good.

Redemption option

The Company shall have the right to redeem any portion of the
Convertible Notes outstanding at an amount equals to the principal
amount of the Convertible Notes together with any interest accrued
thereon in its sole and absolute discretion at any time prior to the
maturity date.

29 W @

(P 3ED

WO 2 2 3 4 T AT R 2 5 70 % I AR i
it

AHRRE 2 T Z2 GRS

1THE] —EE+F+ANH

K& HpEs 929,700,000/ 7T

TE B 5 & 10,000,0003% 7T

F R % 1.0% * A m+EF
NE—R

WREE  0.098 7T (M)

FIH R B1TH MR RE

Mz : BREEHRN-ZZLEFT
A++ B 23874 H0.45
BEILTHEZR0.098 T °

(@) B

BRERGITREREGET
30 BN - FTHREREERE A A
BRENBERRREHRITABRR
BE B I AN B o 2 BB Sk AR A BB 40
ZEBERAEERASBRIER
REHEB o RARE T
BOIREEZRDEERES
HEBNRER AR ERET
EARRZMERMBDEITE
BEREFAREMA -

(b) A5 B B R

A AR 2 32 oK B2 2= RO MR
&+ #300,000,000/% 702 B R
AR A R & ([A R 68
REDETHEE  UWREES
S HEAR 2 32 2 7T0% M AN HE 2
e 2 FIREE -

(c) Bl

NEIERENREHB AR
BRBZAEN A RRER
A& RRE RME I AERE BT A
B2 e RE O EAE D AR E
BABEERRE -
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29 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(Note ii)

ACQUISITION OF 30% EQUITY INTERESTS IN GREEN & GOOD
GROUP LIMITED AND RELEASE OF COUNTER GUARANTEE

The principal terms of the Convertible Notes (A) are as follows:

Date of issue 27 November 2009

HK$417 million
HK$10,000,000

Aggregate principal amount
Denomination in multiple of

Interest rate 0.2%, payable annually in arrears

per annum
Conversion price applicable
Maturity date

HK$0.50 (Note)

The principal terms of the Convertible Notes (B) are as follows:

Date of issue 27 November 2009

HK$382 million
HK$10,000,000

Aggregate principal amount
Denomination in multiple of

Interest rate 0.2%, payable annually in arrears

per annum
Conversion price applicable
Maturity date

HK$0.50 (Note)

Note: Conversion price was adjusted from HK$0.05 to HK$0.50 due to the

10 to 1 share consolidation on 23 October 2009.

(@) Conversion period

The holders of the Convertible Notes (A) and (B) shall have the rights
to convert the whole or part of the principal amounts of the Convertible
Notes (A) and (B) into shares at any time and from time to time,
following the date of issue up to (but excluding) the period of three
business days ending on the maturity date. The shares to be issued
and allotted upon conversion shall rank pari passu in all respects
among themselves and with all other ordinary shares in issue by the

Company on the date of such allotment and issue.

(b) Put option

The Company shall be entitled to serve a written notice to the holder
of the Convertible Notes (A) and (B) to convert the whole or part of
the principal amounts of the Convertible Notes (A) and (B) into shares
at any time and from time to time, following the date of issue of the
Convertible Notes (A) and (B) up to (but excluding) the period of three
business days ending on the maturity date. The shares to be issued
and allotted upon conversion shall rank pari passu in all respects
among themselves and with all other ordinary shares in issue by the

Company on the date of such allotment and issue.

3 years from the date of issue

3 years from the date of issue

29 WRBEENE @

(B &EiD)
WO 4% 2 37 45 B AT B 90 30 % JBe A i

i B S B A AR

AR ERA)Z T RERAT
HITHH “RENF

+—HB=++H

K& 4ass 417,000,000 7T
TEEBE 10,000,0007 7T

FERR 0.2% * AEH—F
B =k
HRABRRE  0.50/% 7T ()
FH#R BITAMRT=F
AIMBEEEBZEZKRAWT
TR —EThE
+—A=++H

PN 382,000,0007# 7T
EEEH 10,000,0007% 7T

FF = 0.2% ' BEm—F
IN=SN
ERBEE  0.50/8 7T ()
e BITEHRE=F
e : BEBREERR-ZTNAFT

(@)

(b)

B-+=ZB2&5t+RAH#A
—RZARHE BFR0.055% T
FAEZE0.508TT °

B8

AHBMBEREARBRBEAGR
RETHRREE BTEHE)
BIRA B =@ % 5 H HRRE BE R
R B % 2 AR sk B 0 AT A AR 3R
BARBASELILBEND
B HS T 31T AL 2 B
DHEMETESERERE
FARCENBITERARRIZAE
HpERTEBRREARSFM
fir ©

W 290 4

DA AR AR SRR A) K(B)
FEANBELHERBA - ART
BERBRARBETHHEZE
(BT IR =@
X BRI BE R & B S 2 BP ek
D AAREEA) RB) AL
RIBE - RABEK T &
TR B % Z RO FEPRA 73 E
EEREREREERETE
BARIZABHMBBEETER
BREARFMA -
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29 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 29 WP o

(Note ii) (Continued)
(c) Redemption option

The Company shall have the right to redeem any portion of the
Convertible Notes (A) and (B) outstanding at an amount equals to the
principal amounts of the Convertible Notes (A) and (B) together with
any interest accrued thereon in its sole and absolute discretion at
any time prior to the maturity date.

The Convertible Notes (A) and (B) contains liability component, equity
component and an embedded put option and redemption option. The equity
component is presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
under the heading of “convertible notes equity reserve”. The effective interest
rate of the liability component is 0.2% per annum. The directors of the
Company have assessed the fair value of the Convertible Notes (A) and (B)
as at 27 November 2009. The methods and assumptions applied for the
valuation of the Convertible Notes (A) and (B) are as follows:

Valuation of liability and equity component

The fair values of liability and equity component were calculated based on
the assumption that the Convertible Notes (A) and (B) are highly probable
to convert into Company’s shares. Therefore, the fair values of the
Convertible Notes (A) and (B) have minimal liability portion and substantially
represents the equity portion of the Convertible Notes (A) and (B).

The Group’s Convertible Notes (A) and (B) issued during 2009 were valued
by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited.

(P 3EiD (48)
(c)  JEUImDIE I A

Tﬁ%#U%Ew%h%%

BIRAAERATREZEA) R
@$$%§ﬁﬁmm%%%ﬂ
B2 4 E OB RER
A AR Z AR (A) K& (B) °

AR ZEEA) RBREE A BN
IO MARNRAHE R EREE
T o BRI DR EEEREERZ A
B B S YRR - BEIH
ZEBFRATF0.2% - RAEECD
FHE MR ERARBR BT NF
+—A=Zt+tBZAFE - JBRE
B(A) &(B)EEFTER 2 57A MR
™

2505 W25 0 A f
R 2 AT E T BRI
BB RB)L R AR TR 2 Tae

HREmATE o Bt - ATRRERA)

Bz rFEMBEEZBERNE
b TREARRREA) M(B) 2

15 -

i@ﬁ_thiﬁﬁZT%hmﬁ
AR BBMETHEEMERA
b8 -
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30 SHARE CAPITAL 30 JBeAR
Number of shares Amount
B 17 8B |
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.01 each RZZEENF—HA—H
at 1 January 2009 BREEC.O1EB T ERAY 100,000,000,000 1,000,000
Decrease on share consolidation E 5 & ot 2 (B (c)
(Note (c)) (90,000,000,000) -
Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.10 each R-ZEENER_-_ZE—ZF
at 31 December 2009 and 2010 +-A=+—HBHERHEE
0.10B T2 EER 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issue and fully paid E?%’_ KER
Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.01 each —Z2FNF—A—H
at 1 January 2009 Hxﬁfﬁo.m BT & AR 23,452,299,150 234,523
Issue of placing shares (Note (a)) BITRER D (i) 3,510,000,000 35,100
Issue of new shares upon conversion 7 88 1 7] # j% Z iR 85
of convertible notes (Note (b)) BT (T (D) 666,666,666 6,667
Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.01 each FREEC.OE L2 LB 27,628,965,816 276,290
Adjustment for share consolidation BRMOEHHED 2 HE
(Note (c)) (Bt 3E(c) (24,866,069,235) —
Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.1 each BREECIETLZ B 2,762,896,581 276,290
Issue of placing shares (Note (d)) BITELE B (Y 3£ () 130,000,000 13,000
Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.1 each RZZEZENF+_HA=+—H
at 31 December 2009 FRREEAB T2 LM 2,892,896,581 289,290
Issue of new shares upon conversion A & ¥ 7] #4 j5% ZiE 8%
of convertible notes (Note () BT (M5E(e) 735,960,000 73,596
Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.10 each R=-ZE—ZEf+-AF=+—H
at 31 December 2010 SREE0I10B T2 EER 3,628,856,581 362,886
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30 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

The movements in the share capital during the year ended 31 December
2009 and 2010 are as follows:

(@)

On 22 June 2009, the Company completed a top-up placing of
3,510,000,000 shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.048 each
under general mandate, which was granted to the directors pursuant
to the resolution passed by annual general meeting held on 3 June
2009.

Convertible notes holders had converted their convertible notes into
666,666,666 ordinary shares during 2009.

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting held on 22 October
2009, a share consolidation was duly passed in which every ten
existing issued and unissued ordinary shares of par value HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company be consolidated into one
ordinary share of par value HK$0.10 each.

On 24 November 2009, the Company completed a top-up placing of
130,000,000 shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.215 each
under general mandate, which was granted to the directors pursuant
to the resolution passed by annual general meeting held on 3 June
2009.

Convertible notes holders had converted their convertible notes into
735,960,000 ordinary shares during 2010.

30 AN @)

MEsE

B TTNER-_T-FTF+-A
ST BLEFEZBRAZHNT

(@)

R-ZZEZNFAA=-+=H "
NAEIBRE_ZTZENFA=H
BOZBRRAFAE BB
RERBTEET —KBE
T ERALERS A RNIES
f%0.048% ;T 2 BB E 2 A
3,510,000,000/% f& 15 °

TRREEFEAER=-FF
NFHETBRBREEIHK
666,666,666/ & i@ ©

RZZEZNFFTA-F—HE
TZBREENRE L BHE
HEEXNESEA Bt »
AEBRATB+REREAE
0.01B T2 HBEBITRARE
TEEREMHA—REREME
0108 Lz LBmAK -

RZZEZEAF+—-AZ+M@M
B QAFRBRE-_ZTNEFENA
“THBEOZREBFTAE LB
BIZRERIBTESEZ K
B TRIARERT A RIL
FRR0.215% T 2 BRI E AT
130,000,000 f% 17

ATRRERSEACDR-F—
TEGHATBRBRERIRK
735,960,000% & @AY -
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31 SHARE OPTION SCHEME 31 JiE B HE v

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Option Scheme include the
Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group, customers of the Group, any person or entity
providing research, development or other technological support to
the Group, and any other person or entity determined by the
directors as having contributed or may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group. The Option Scheme became
effective on 18 September 2001 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

At 31 December 2010, the number of shares in respect of which
options have been granted and remained outstanding under the
Options Scheme was 659,400,000 (2009: 490,798,900) which
represents 18% (2009: 17%) of the issued share capital of the
Company at 31 December 2010. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of the share
options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholder’s meetings.

RERE B S (B
g R EBLOENREZE
XEAEEERZAERSHE
EoBREAEZABKR2EE
BRARZEZBUIFNTES
NER/EAN)  SEHMBES - &
BrEmIMBHER FEE
P REBERHENRT  MAEXRHE
Mk 2 BARERARE
ERRERABREBBER MK
EEREMZEFMEMALHE
2 BRESEIN T —FN
AT NBER - BRIEZBEHR
£5] - BRIBZ B R +Fi—
BB -

NZZE—ZF+-A=+—08 1R
BRERE SIS BEMRITERE
EEMmMPEZBRMNDEE B
659,400,000 %15 (ZZZ S :
490,798,9000%) ' (ERAIN =Z—
THE+ - A=+ HZBBETERA
18% (ZZEZNAF : 17%) ° IREM
+ =8 A B N IR B BB A P] [ B
TR A BB EETET
ZEEBRHEE TMERBEARNE
AREDSEITRN 21% °

BBk s EBRARNKHBR
BEE s BRES21EAEE
o AR ATARI R A KB
TTZBENRE - FIRE 2 BRE
ZITEHHESRE - HIRER
Pt 57 B AR AR FIIA - M im
BE A SENBERER G B
e

BRI TR T E 5 E AR
BRRBRAS LREZER -
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31 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

31 B RERF B @)

The share options outstanding under the Option Scheme and the
movement of share options during the year are set out below:

FA - RIFBBRE M ARTTEZ
FRRHE S B i < BRI T

At At Date of Exercise Exercise
January Granted Lapsed Forfeited 31 December grant of period of price of
2010 duing the year  during the year  during the year 2010  share options' share options  share option®®
Name or category R-%-% R-B-%% R BRE
of participant SEEHZARR £-F  FRERE EREXR FRERM tZA=1-B REBH BREGRER i@
HK$
7
Directors iz
Lee ChiKong EXl] 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 10/2/2009 10/2/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.58
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 24/7/2009 24/7/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.65
- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 15/9/2010 15/9/2010 to 13/9/2011 0.285
Jing Bin RE 7,500,000 - - - 7,500,000 13/10/2007  15/10/2007 to 13/9/2011 1.94
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 3/3/2008 3/3/2008 to 13/9/2011 1.59
10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 10/2/2009 10/2/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.58
6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 24/7/2009 24/7/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.65
- 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 15/9/2010 15/9/2010 to 13/9/2011 0.285
Cheng Man For Eyed] 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 13/10/2007  15/10/2007 to 13/9/2011 1.94
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 3/3/2008 3/3/2008 to 13/9/2011 1.59
10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 10/2/2009 10/2/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.58
10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 24772009 24/7/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.65
- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 15/9/2010 15/9/2010 to 13/9/2011 0.285
Law Wai Fai (Note i) Ba58 (i) 600,000 - - - 600,000 3/3/2008 3/3/2008 to 13/9/2011 1.59
200,000 - - - 200,000 10/2/2009 10/2/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.58
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 241772009 24/7/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.65
Cheung Wai Tak KigE - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 15/9/2010 15/9/2010 to 13/9/2011 0.285
Li Xiangjun EyiEl - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 15/9/2010 15/9/2010 to 13/9/2011 0.285
Zhu Guang Qian KR - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 15/9/2010 15/9/2010 to 13/9/2011 0.285
Former
director HEE
Lam Ping Kei (Note i) T (H ) 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) - 3/3/2008 3/3/2008 to 13/9/2011 1.59
Consultants B
In aggregate At 80,000,000 - - (72,500,000) 7,500,000 13/10/2007  15/10/2007 to 13/9/2011 1.94
33,400,000 - - (18,600,000) 14,800,000 3/3/2008 3/3/2008 to 13/9/2011 1.59
600,000 - - (600,000) - 3/3/2008 3/3/2009 to 13/9/2011 1.59
600,000 - - (600, 000) - 3/3/2008 3/3/2010 to 13/9/2011 1.59
30,000,000 - - 30,000,000 10/2/2009 10/2/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.58
130,000,000 - - - 130,000,000 24/7/2009 24/7/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.65
— 198,600,000 - - 198,600,000 15/9/2010 15/9/2010 to 13/9/2011 0.285
Employees k&
In aggregate a3t 36,465 - (36,465) - 3/1/2005 24/1/2005 to 25/1/2010 0.5628
54,697 - (54,697) - 3/1/2005 24/1/2006 to 25/1/2010 0.5628
72,930 - (72,930 - 3/1/2005 24/1/2007 to 25/1/2010 0.5628
102,638 - (102,638) - 3/1/2005 24/1/2008 to 25/1/2010 0.5628
5,082,170 - (5,032,170) - 3/1/2005 24/1/2009 to 25/1/2010 0.5628
1,660,000 - - (1,660,000) - 3/3/2008 3/3/2008 to 13/9/2011 1.59
5,070,000 - - (5,070,000) - 3/3/2008 3/3/2009 to 13/9/2011 1.59
5,070,000 - - (5,070,000) - 3/3/2008 3/3/2010 to 13/9/2011 1.59
29,800,000 - - - 29,800,000 10/2/2009 10/2/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.58
90,000,000 - - - 90,000,000 24/7/2009 24/7/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.65
— 54,400,000 - - 54,400,000 15/9/2010 15/9/2010 to 13/9/2011 0.285
490,798,900 280,000,000 (5,298,900 (106,100,000) 659,400,000
Note: ML
() Resigned as director of the Company on 17 February 2009 (i) RZZEZNF_A+HERAEHE
NAESF
(i)  Resigned as director of the Company on 22 June 2010 (ii) RZZE—ZF A=+ —HE

ERAES
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31 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(1)

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share option is subject to adjustment
in the case of a capitalisation issue, rights issue, sub-division
or consolidation of the Company’s shares or reduction of the
Company’s share capital.

The number of share options and exercised price had been
adjusted due to the 10 to 1 share consolidation effective from
23 October 2009.

No options were exercised during the year ended
31 December 2010 (2009: nil).

31 B REEEE 2

(1)

BREzZEBHHEREA
HEEE{TEHRMASLE

WA (T A A A
BT R AFRGHR
A 0F R A TRABLRT M
A -

Bl EE B R{TEEC A
“EENFHA-t=HE
FtREeEHAE—RZEHE
PHERFAE -

RBEE-_ZT-TF+_A=
+— Eiifiﬁ,ﬂ%&ﬁﬁ%lﬂx
BETE(ZZEZTNLE

These fair value of the share options granted on 13 October 2007,
3 March 2008, 10 February 2009, 24 July 2009 and 15 September
2010 were calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model. The
inputs into the model were at the respective dates of grant of options

ZEEJ\EEH =H :%ﬁgﬂ
F_A+H - ZEZEAFEAZ
TOEE_ZE-ZTFAA+THA

as follows: Bz BlE 2 A ATV B TA
N7 — R EEEXEITR
HoREBRLHBEREEZER %R

A2 ABEYBET :
13 October 3 March 10 February 24 July 15 September
2007 2008 2009 2009 2010
“EEtE “EEZNE “EEZNE “EENE “E-%F
+A+=H =RZ=H ZAtH tAZ+mA hATER
Weighted average share price  MIETFHIR(E $0.194% T $0.156/8 T $0.05878 T $0.065/8 T $0.285/5 7T
Exercise price i $0.194i8 7 $0.159% T $0.05878 $0.065/ T $0.285%5 7T
Expected volatility iEHY A 91.32% 78.35% 98% 101.6% 74%
Expected life EirES 4 35 2.6 2138 05
Risk-free rate mERHN=E 3.75% 1.17% 0.368% 0.128% 0.170%
Expected dividend yield B REE 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Employee exit rate pre-vesting 558 A& 5 BB & N/ATER N/AT B N/AT B N/AT B N/AT B
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31 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31 SR RE T )

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous year prior to the
date of grant of options. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$13,154,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
HK$81,172,000) in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

At 31 December 2010, the Company had 659,400,000 share
options (2009: 490,798,900 share options) outstanding under the
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 659,400,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each of the Company and additional share capital of HK$65,940,000
(2009: HK$49,079,890) and share premium of approximately
HK$363,446,000 (2009: HK$431,622,000) before share issue
expenses.

HERHRIE KB R B IRER K
BEREEAMNBE-—FAZERL
BRI o BLIFEEME  1TER
HRITREEMS @ REEEE
ZEEAE  RBRAERZE
SHEMCIEL AR

BHE-_Z-ZEF+-_A=+—H
IEFE - SEFRAFMARLER
EER 2 BT 4 /513,154,000
BIL(ZEZNF ¢ 81,172,0007%8
TT) °

R—E—ZEF+-_A=+—8"
NEIREERERT & M ARITEZ
& % #E 5 659,400,00010 (=
FLEE © 490,798,90010 BE G #E) -
BIBARIBAZEREE W5
MARTTHE 2 R RS TE
B FEEHNETT R F)659,400,000/%
FREECI0E Lz EEmR - &
REEYMNIE K 65,940,000/ 7L (—F
TAE : 49,079,89078 7T) AL
B #49363,446,000/8 L (—ZEZ
JLEE : 431,622,000/ 7T) K%
BITRHOAE -
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32 RESERVES

32 fififhi

Company A )
Share Convertible  (Accumulated
Share options notes equity  losses)/retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
TaREE (ZitFR) /
BB EE BRERSE BifE REEF ait
At January 2009 RZEENE-R 1,212,844 134,032 11,018 (66,669) 1,291,229
Premium arising from conversion ZRTHREE
of convertible notes into new shares BIRDEEZEE 53,333 - (6,010) - 47,323
Premium on issue of placing shares BIRERNEE 142,464 - - - 142,464
Redemption of convertible notes BOuAakEE - - (5,008) - (5,008)
Issue of convertiole notes BIRRRE - - 334,151 - 334,151
Cancellation of share options TiEERE - (24,742) - 24,742 -
Employee share option benefits EEERERR - 81,172 - - 81,172
Surplus on revaluation ERLE-ANBAT
of convertible notes in relation Rk R ER
to disposal of a subsidiary and JRREEZ
release of the counter guarantee B R4 - - - 212,771 212,771
Loss for the year AERER - - - (83,677) (83,677)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE
and 1 January 2010 TZA=T-Ak
“Z-TF-F-H 1408641 190,462 334,151 87,171 2,020,425
Premium arising from conversion ZRTHREE
of convertible notes into new shares BHROEEZRE 86,028 - (159,624) - (73,59)
Cancellation of share option FHEERE - (81,474) - 81,474 -
Employee share option benefits EEERERR - 13,154 - - 13,154
Loss for the year AERER - - - (96,585) (96,585)
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-%%
+ZA=1+-H 1,494,669 122,142 174,527 72,060 1,863,398
Note: BIEE -
The share premium of the Company represents: (i) the excess of the then nal B HERE  (REEESE

combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefor; (ii) the premium utilised as a result of the
capitalisation issue of shares of the Company; and (iii) the premium arising
from the new issue of shares of the Company.

In accordance with the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium
may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

HAEBZIBRARER ZAHEES
EBRHARRRBAHEEEMRT L
BAEEZ Z58  (HEREETA
AR P B A 2 E(E ¢ M)A RIEE
HRELZ R (E ©

RERSFERTE (BB 2R
E o ROEBA DK T AR - H
ZEEERREDIRR - ARIARERN
BEEBBREFIREN 2ER - K
1038 {8 B 75 AT A B R AL B2 75 R
I °
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33 ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTERESTS IN A SUBSIDIARY

On 27 November 2009, the Group completed the acquisition of
remaining 30% equity interests in Green & Good, which owned 100%
equity interests in Leeka Wood from Superview. Upon the completion
of the acquisition, Green & Good became a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company.

WSk — 11 B ) 2 )
AH i

RoBEAGET-A=t+A
EEERMBRRBEZEHT
S0%M AR « 47 FHALE Y
FAS100% AR * SR
% B2BERARTZ2AENE

NI

P Bg AR 2 32 & B FER 5T B

Details of the net assets acquired in respect of Green & Good on

completion date are summarised below:

ZHBRENT

Fair value recognised

on acquisition

WERERAZATE

HK$'000

FHET

Prepaid land leases payments AN T HEER 26,555
Property, plant and equipment W - BB NEE 5,520
Biological assets EMEE 3,492,063

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FENFIE e R EMEWERIE 179,219
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary e — I [R) R B 2 Bl 3k0E 26,077
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFEEE 17,773
Trade payables FERE SRIA (26,810)
Other payables and accruals b B 5 5RI8 K E & IR (292,043)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries SIEES NG B (21,393)
Amount due to ultimate holding company FET & AR A R 2 FUOR (489,941)
Net fair value of assets BEENTFE 2,917,020
30% share of net fair value of asset acquired FEAG TR B EE A T IFE 2 30% 875,106
Acquisition Consideration IR (B (751,990)
Discount on acquisition before adjustment for MR EEATEEZSHED

change in fair value of convertible notes FEE A 2 W TR 123,116
Fair value adjustment of Convertible Notes (A) AR ERA) A EFAE 251,906
Discount on acquisition W BB T B 375,022
Acquisition Consideration s E 751,990
Satisfied by: TR EEZA -

— Elimination of the amount due from — ¥EEYUE S 2 FE (M 5E1)

Superview (Note 1) (335,011)
— Convertible Notes (A) (Note 2) — AJ|mEREREA) (f7E2) (416,979)




SUPERB SUMMIT INTERNATIONAL TIMBER COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 5 Y 25 e B ek

33

34

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTERESTS IN A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

The discount on acquisition arising on the acquisition of additional
30% equity interests in Green & Good has been recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Notes:

1) The amount due from Superview of HK$335,011,000 represents the
outstanding amount of HK$325,111,000 plus interest accrued up to
27 November 2009, which Superview should compensate the
Company pursuant to the profit guarantee given by Superview from
which the Company acquired the 70% equity interests in Green &
Good in 2007. The Company is entitled to set off this outstanding
shortfall against the consideration.

2) The remaining balance of the consideration of HK$416,979,000 was
settled by issuance of Convertible Notes (A) by the Company to
Superview. Further details of the Convertible Notes (A) are set out in
note 29.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY AND
RELEASE OF THE COUNTER
GUARANTEE

On 27 November 2009, the Group disposed of its 67.7% equity
interests in G&G Wood, held by Leeka Wood, to Superview. The
consideration of the disposal of 67.7% equity interests in G&G Wood
was HK$113,026,000 which was satisfied by a cash amount of
HK$21,486,000 and against the amount due from Leeka Wood with
amount of HK$91,540,000. After the completion of the disposal,
the Group ceased to own any interest in G&G Wood.

The consideration of releasing of the counter guarantee obligations
of Leeka Wood and G&G Wood under Counter Guarantee
Agreements with Superview was HK$389,238,000 and was satisfied
by cash of HK$7,389,000 and issuing Convertible Notes (B) with
principal amount of HK$381,849,000.

33

34

W e — I Y 2 ) 7
A B (=)

Wi 4% 2 32 RE N30 % B AN #E 25 P
EEZHETRERES BER

BfEE -

1) FEUGER S 2 5TE335,011,0007%8
TLEN/R $325,111,000/ 7T i 2
+i_7?n¢+ A=+t
BZRE  DHRESBREERA
ﬂ%:ﬁ?%ﬁtﬂﬁzﬁ%ﬁ*Z?
70% 0% 2 1 2 Fﬂ’ﬁtljz/m%lﬁ%
BMEREQARZEEE - QN7
BREDAMTER IR AME -

2)  RI{E#%416,979,000/8 LA
AlMB R T A A IR (A )32
- BRI EKRA)ZE
HREBE AN E29 -

i 2 — BB I8 2 ) &
it B 2465 IR

RZZEENF+—A=++t8 "
EEMESELEEREZZEAG
M2 67. 7% Az (A% 2 532K
¥ER) HEHZEAH R
67. 7% B AETZREAR
113,026,000 7T LB $
21,486,000 7T & 35 85 & YL 4% 2
= AREFIFI1,540,0008 L
- HEZTKE  SETHBHEAR
bk 2 = NHSh 2 TR e

BRBR 4%~ 32 N2 R4k 7 32 /N6l @
REBEIIZRERBZETZ
RIERE A 2 KB AB389,238,000
7 IT  LAIR £7,389,00058 7T I %%
177N4%8381,849,000/8 7T 2 [ #
RZIEB)FT AT -
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34 B — WA R &
B R IEDR 2

34 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY AND
RELEASE OF THE COUNTER

GUARANTEE (Continued)

Details of the net liabilities disposed in respect of G&G Wood and
the release of the counter guarantee are summarised below:

FLAR 2 NG HE 2 BEF
BERERZBERABERELD

T
HK$'000
T
Property, plant and equipment ERN IV 89,036
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FENEIE - 518 REMEWKIE 92,790
Cash and cash equivalents HehReFERE 109
Trade payables BB SERIA \ (2,107)
Other payables and accruals b < 5178 K E & RUIE (27,618)
Accrued interests FEET B (12,694)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIRTTEBE (408,163)
General reserve — M
— contribution by government (Note 4) — BFHE (FisE4) (907)
Net liabilities BEFH 269,554
Disposal consideration (Note 1) mERE BIFE1 113,026
Compensation for releasing of the counter PR RER 2 BE (B
guarantee (389,238)
Loss on disposal and release of AR EEB)EL A FEHRZE
counter guarantee before fair value 2 B KRR RER
adjustment on Convertible Notes (B) ) 3| (6,658)
Fair value adjustment on AT E R (B)
Convertible Notes (B) ZNFEEFE 212,771
Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary and HE-BHBATR
release of the counter guarantee BRRERZBRFHE 206,113
Compensation for releasing of the counter R RAE R Z BB AT T
guarantee was satisfied by: BIEEN -
— Cash (Note 2) — Be (f3F2) (7,389)
— Convertible Notes (B) (Note 3) — AR =& B) (FF:E3) (381,849)
389,238
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: AHEREZHEFEE .
Payment for compensation for release of AR RIERSZ T 2 BE
the counter guarantee (7,389)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRERASEEEE (109)
(7,498)

The gain on disposal of a subsidiary arising on the disposal of 67.7%
equity interests in G&G Wood and the release of the counter
guarantee was recognised in the consolidated income statement.

A & 4% 2 3= K HI Rm67.7%[% A
%ﬁé&ﬂﬁﬁ?&%%ﬁ’ﬁ?izuﬂﬁ
—EHBE AR  ERGRA K

mRAMER
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34 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY AND
RELEASE OF THE COUNTER
GUARANTEE (Continued)

Notes:

1)

The disposal consideration of G&G Wood was HK$113,026,000 and
Superview, was required to settle this amount within 90 days from
disposal completion date. According to the conditional sale and
purchase agreement approved by the shareholders on 10 November
2009, the consideration of disposal of HK$113,026,000 was to be
settled by cash. However, as requested by Superview and after
considering the legal opinion of the Company’s lawyer, the disposal
consideration was partially settled by an amount of cash of
HK$21,486,000 and the remaining balance of the consideration was
offset the amount due from Leeka Wood of HK$91,540,000 in the
year 2010.

The consideration of HK$7,389,000 was the interest accrued (i.e.
90% of bank interest of HK$8,210,000 for the period from 11 July
2009 to 27 November 2009). The amount was satisfied in cash.

The remaining balance of release of counter guarantee of
HK$169,078,000 was settled by issuance of Convertible Notes (B)
by the Company to Superview. Further details of the Convertible Notes
(B) are set out in note 29.

BN & BB had contributed amount of RMB800,000 to G&G Wood
on 26 December 2008, which is statutory required for iE [A] 58/ &
SEAMIRAEETEE inrespect of F/NPEBEREESIER.

BrEAtRsEERER
113,026,000/8 7T + MiASAR
HEEK HEIE 2908 A
LS5 - RBREN T hF
+—ATHILEZ BIRHEESH
# o HER(E113,026,000 7T
LIRS - A - BREBEA
FrEsk BB A RIRMZ AR
BRE  HERENIHURSE
21,486,000/ T 1+ RIE#EE
DR S-S F R =
REFRIE1,540,000/8 7T+ °

R (87,389,000 7T T T 2 F
BEEI=ZZEZTAFEA+—HZE
—ETAF+—A=-++tAH
548,210,000/ JTATE 4 2 iR
1TFIE Z290%) ° % E AL
WeIfo

iR BR S HEIR 2 #2%8169,078,000
HBITHARABEEITABRE
ERXT - B BRKREEEB)
ZE— SRR EAN 29 ©

BMNREBER -ZTNF+
Z R RB R 2 5 ARG &
& AREB800,0007T © TRt
NEEBERESEB ZEMA
BENREHREEERR 2%
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35 DISPOSAL OF OTHER SUBSIDIARIES 35

(@)

On 23 June 2010, the Group disposed of its entire equity @ RZE—FFAZ+=
interests in E-Today which carried out all of its electronic A - SEHEHNETodayz
consumer products business. BIRPARERS - Z A RIS
HEFBETFHEEBERET
HK$’000
FHET
Net assets disposed of: MEZEEFE
Prepaid land lease payments A L E K 25,706
Property, plant and equipment W - BN 164,370
Inventories FE 72,960
Trade receivables e E 5 BR1E 86,504
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FEZIE ~ 514 K E fth & W 3118 39,067
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFERE 138,293
Trade payables BB SR (59,004)
Other payables and accruals H A FE T SR8 I FE FT RIE (73,781)
Tax payables FERTBIIR (34,096)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITEE (45,714)
314,305
Impairment loss of disposal group RIZZEZNFHEREEER 2 REEIE
recognised in 2009 (222,571)
91,734
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of F 2k ¥ E-Today 2 I HliE M i E & = /FE
the net assets of E-Today reclassified from BERGET P EARBREL
equity to profit or loss on loss of 2 RETIEH Z%8
control of E-Today (83,579)
Gain on disposal el 79,845
Satisfied by: A3 A -
Cash B 88,000

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of E-Today is as follows:

EBALEE-Todayz Re MREE
EEERLFEZOWHET ¢

2010

—E-=fF

HK$’000

FET

Cash consideration HeRE 88,000
Cash and cash equivalents HEZRSRASEEEE

disposed of (138,293)

Net outflow of cash
and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal
of E-Today

B H 5E-Today
Z2HEENIReFEER
Vb=l

(50,293)
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35 DISPOSAL OF OTHER SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(b)

On 31 October 2010, the Group disposed its entire equity (b)
interests in Hunan Leeka Wood, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Leeka Wood, to an independent third party in a
consideration of RMB29,722,000 (equivalent to approximately

HK$34,968,000).

35 Al BB A Al @)

RZE—ZEF+A=+—
H £ER—BBIE=H
PEERNBEEZZ (B2
EREZZEWBAR) Z
PERAER REAEAR
#29,722,0007T (1HE R4
34,968,000 7T) °

HK$’'000
T
Net assets disposed of: HEZEEFE
Prepaid land lease payments N HEER 25,954
Amount due from Leeka Wood JE W A% 2 F2 N K FRIA 27,791
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFERE 180
Other payables and accruals E A FE A SR8 R FERT OB (4,473)
Tax payables FET R IE 2)
49,450
Cumulative exchange differences in BRMEECRFEEY
respect of the net assets of ZEER EBEELY
Hunan Leeka Wood reclassified WFE AR 2 32 2 PRI RET
from equity to profit or loss on loss of HERENSEEER
control of Hunan Leeka Wood 1,311
Loss on disposal & EE (15,793)
Consideration B 34,968
Satisfied by: ATF AR
Elimination of the amount due from HIHEWE 2 EAREFIAR
Leeka Wood and other payables SEHMER K
of the Group (34,733)
Cash Be (235)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of Hunan Leeka Wood is as follows:

BRALENRmEzm s RE MA
SEFEBEBRAFBRZOMMNM

B
HK$’000
FHET
Cash consideration HeRE 235
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRERESEEER (180)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BRHENEAEL =

in respect of the disposal 2R kREFMEIEE

of Hunan Leeka Wood MA TR 55
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35

36.

DISPOSAL OF OTHER SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(c) During the year, the Group struck off a subsidiary, Stack Gains
Investments Limited.

35

i B AL B B A v ()

) FAR G EZEEHBEENEBEAR
A]Stack Gains Investments
Limited °

HK$’'000
FET

Net liabilities disposed of: HEZBEFE -
Other payables and accruals b A< 3108 K AT RUE (2,520)
Gain on disposal el 2,520

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During 2009, the Group entered into the conditional share transfer
agreement in respect of an acquisition of a subsidiary and release
counter guarantee.

The acquisition of additional 30% equity interests in Green & Good,
which owned 100% equity interests in Leeka Wood. In a
consideration of HK$751,990,000 was settled by setting-off of
amount due from Superview of HK$335,011,000 and issuance of
Convertible Notes (A) of principal amount of HK$416,979,000.

The consideration of disposal of 67.7% equity interest in G&G Wood
amounted to HK$113,026,000 receivable from Superview, was
partially set off against the amount due from Leeka Wood of
HK$91,540,000.

The consideration of release of the counter guarantee obligations
of Leeka Wood and G&G Wood under Counter Guarantee
Agreements by Superview was settled by issuance of Convertible
Notes (B) principal amount of HK$381,849,000.

Further details of the acquisition, disposal of a subsidiary and release
counter guarantee and disposal of subsidiaries are set out in notes
33, 34 and 35 respectively.

37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities at the end of the
reporting period (2009: Nil).

36.

37

ERIEBLERS

R-ZZZTNE  SEAKRE—F
B 8~ =) M R B R PE R RT AL B {5
GG EAE

W HE R B 4% 2 32 /R ZE100% I8 A 4
R ER 2 S RAINS0% AR AN M A o
R {B751,990,0005% 7T LA §4 FE UK
B 2 5T8335,011,000/8 7T M 3%
174 %4 /5416,979,000/8 7T 2 7]
BBRERA)Z -

HEL 2 2= ARG Mm67.7 %A A 1
HIEWE S 2 {8 /5113,026,000
BT B D LA S IR U AR Z =K
718 91,540,000 T -

BEBBRFECENERE ZEN
Bl RERBZE T RERE
TZzZREBEUNEITAE
381,849,000/ T 2 Al Ak = 1%
B)XZ T °

EBKBRLE—HHBAR
EBRRERIAREEHRBRARZ
E—TFBRIENMFEI3 - 34
5350

o2 £

REI|EHL - REALEER KA
BECEZAF  E) -
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38

39

40

41

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38 ¥ ik
At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group’s assets (2009: RBERRTEEEEE (ST
Nil) were pledged to secure the Group’s banking facilities. NE - | ERRERERITRLE
Z AR o
OPERATING LEASE 39 HMEALK
The Group leases certain leasehold land and buildings under CSEREEEHERESTHE
operating lease. The original lease terms for these leasehold land THREF  c ZEHELHMRE
and buildings ranged from one to three years. FZREHENTFT—ZE=F -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitment for R|EBL  EERTIFIHA
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating B2 TR B S E 2 KK
leases falling due as follows: ®EMESNFAELRT
2010 2009
—E-=fF ZTENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTExT FHET
Within one year —F R 371 2,261
In the second to fifth years, inclusive $£ _-_ZFRF (BEEEMF) - 6,396
371 8,657
COMMITMENTS 40 7R
The Group did not have any significant capital commitments as at RZE—ZTFF+_A=+—8"
31 December 2010 (2009: Nil). EEVEARNEREARE(CT
TNF - E) o
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41 BN 125

Except for transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the

BEEMBRESTREZRS

consolidated financial statements, the Group has significant RE#IN - REFNB AT HE
; = Y
transactions and balances with the following related party during BALZERR S RiEH
the year:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TR FET
Interest income received from ) 8 &= R 2 ) B A
Superview - 9,900
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41

42

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41
(Continued)

The amount due from Superview was secured, interest free and
was fully repaid during the year (2009: HK$113,026,000).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables, other payables and accruals and convertible notes
interest payable. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes to the consolidated financial statements. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Credit risks

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31 December 2010 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group manages its exposure to credit risk through continual
monitoring of the credit quality of its customers, taking into
account their financial position, collection history, past
experience and other relevant factors. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable to ensure that adequate impairment loss
provision are made for probable irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

B AL 5 @

EWRBEZzZBABERE 28
NMERFREHEE(ZZTZAN
£ 113,026,000/ 7T) °

<5 il o, g 4 P R e
BR

EEIECHIARRERKES
BRIE - Rl M HEMEWFIRE - B
eMRELEEER  ENESE
TR~ ELAl AN SRR K B AT ARIR A
RENAHREZENE - ZF2
BMTAFBENE B ZHRAMBR
RIERE - ZFeRTAER
JR\ Bz K 2n e 5 85 L B 2 SR & 5
RTIX - EEEBEENRERER
A BRAMERAERAAE
HiE 16 o

(a) 5 £ BE

RIE-TF+-_A=+—
B EHFHREEITEE
ZBERT - BLEERIE R
EMEEMS  fEZ&D
EERBAERERE PR
MBMRAINZEEEZRE
B REEBHEETAR
FZEEERERAEEER
BrAdE - WALE BE M BOR
W BRIES  BEERR
HipHBAEE  ptod - £H
E MR & @RI EUE SR
BB SR - HERT AL
AR Bl R AR I R R E
BREE -t - RARIES
R EEZEERBREE



SUPERB SUMMIT INTERNATIONAL TIMBER COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 5 Y 25 e B ek

42

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(d)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi for the year ended 31 December 2010.
Such exposures arise from sales of goods in currencies other
than the Group’s functional currency. All of the Group’s sales
are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, United States Dollar
and Renminbi for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group conducts its business transactions principally on
Hong Kong Dollar, United States Dollar and Renminbi. The
exchange rate risk of the Group is not significant.

Liquidity risk

Regarding the present policy in the management of the liquidity
risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

2 SEMBI Y

(b)

(d)

(%)

Bl & it B AP
)3 o B8

HREEYESEANMEE
E - HEEZRARKEEE
ERERE D EH G R
BHERD -

A s o B

HE-T-TF+=-A=+
—BIFE  SFEFAEZR
SEERREEEARKS
% BREEREEEREED
BEEEDINEBHEEER -
HE_Z—ZTF+-_A=+
—BIFE  EEMEHEE
BB - ETRARE
{E o

5 1B 3R B X A OMN S SR I
R A BEEEEIESR
SN LR AE - A ASE B
VRREIHEARIMNERR -

SEFENET - ETRA
REETEBRS - KEZ
PEE < R B EE 0K o

Ui ) ¢ 4 el B

HEEEERRBES R
TBEME - SEERLE
REEBRIERE RS R
Re FEBRKF - ULEN
SEZEMREERESRE)
BRE -
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43

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continueq)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(e)

Internally generated cash flow is the general sources of funds
to finance the operations of the Group. The Group’s liquidity
risk management includes diversifying the funding sources.
The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to
ensure it has adequate financial resources in meeting its
financial obligations.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash, the available of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to close our market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
business, the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping committed credit lines available.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments is within 1 year (2009: within 1 year).

Fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
assumed to be the same as their carrying values.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

42 %E&)ﬁl‘ﬁ?%ﬂ HE X

43

(%)

(d) O Bl 4 B ()

(e)

SE-BRUARBELEZRE
MEREBREESR - &H
ZRBETRREERES
THEZEE KR - KETEH
EHETBESHN - LA
A R W EIRIER
MBEL -

BERPECRRERBRE
HBRRRS  BBCERE
EERME AT BEMA
BRESULREF SETS
WhLZBES) - MRHERERTS
ZEEME - REBIRE
AEBRAZERHREE B
MBESHEZEEN -

RmERE - RIBEETHOR
RN KEEREEZ
AR A—FR(ZEE
NE : —FR) o

<5 Tl O B Gl
iz AP

TREENERBEQATE
BRREHEmEER -

27 B 4 B

SEERHEEARAREREEREE
WARBEETNEE  RKT
BWEFEBERAZBRKEZ
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43

a4

45

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and various reserves. The directors
of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis. As
a part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the associated risks and take appropriate actions
to adjust the Group’s capital structure. The overall strategy of the
Group remained unchanged during the two years ended 31
December 2010 and 2009.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 January 2011, the Group granted 105,000,000 share options
to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each to individuals.
The exercise price is HK$0.405 per share and the validity period of
the share options is from 18 January 2011 to 13 September 2011.
Among the total 105,000,000 share options, none of share options
were granted to the directors of the Company.

On 4 January 2011, the Group entered into a supplementary
agreement with Tianjin Harbor-side Industrial Investment Holding
Limited (RZEREEZEREER AR 2 A]), which is a controlled
corporation under Tianjin Port Group, in relation to the in-principle
cooperation in respect of the settlement of certain portions of the
Linbo Industrial Park (K &M1& & 2 &) project of the Group in the
harbor-side industrial area of Tianjin Binhai New Area. The Company
aims to establish a long term strategic cooperative partnership with
Tianjin Port Group by virtue of the cooperative agreement and its
supplementary agreement, and jointly develop timber-related
businesses.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
the current year’s presentation.

43

44

45

B A L B A B ()

SEEAEERIERS EES
LEEERARIESE ABEGE
= BREBTRARSER
B PAEETHBRTEARSRE
%o fERRE —8h  ARIES
ERERKARNABE R - WK
REETHAREBE 2 EAREE
B -HEZZZTER_ZFFTN
F+-A=+—HIMFR " &
B2 BREERaE T

ik of 30 4% 90 5

RZZE—F—HA+\B £EMRA
=T AT H 105,000,000 7] 72
EEREEC. 10 T E B 2 A
7 o BERRHE 2 1T1E B R E0.405
BT HEBE AR T ——F —
AtNBE-_Z——FHLA+=
B - 14 ££105,000,00015 i A% 1
o WEBERERTARZES -

R-ZF——F—AWA - £EH
REBEBANERERE—X
RWMBERREZBRBRARM
KB REMBEXREBRBZH
T EPRREEMRIEEE
XERAESFEFRZITHITH
& ARHEREAFHERAE
AR EXTERERY R
ZHEEEIERHEEE  KRAME
A HERE 2 FT5 -

PO

ETHEBEFEERHSBUFE
KEEZ25 -






